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Nineteenth Annual Report 2008-2009

Your Directors are pleased to present the Nineteenth Annual Report of your Company alongwith the audited statement

of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2009.

Business overview

The year under report was largely overshadowed by the global economic crisis and recession. Amidst these challenges,

the revenue on consolidated basis, grew in US Dollar terms by 21% year-on-year to USD 127.84 Million and in Rupee

terms the growth was 40%, year-on-year amounting to Rs. 5,938.31 Million. This increase was attributed to the growth

in business with your Company’s existing customers and business from new customers as well.

Your Directors are taking all efforts to rationalise costs and improve operational parameters. Even in this challenging

year, your Company continues to be debt free with a cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 940.02 Million.

During the year under report, Mr. Hari Haran joined Persistent Systems, Inc., as the President and will be responsible for

overall Sales and Marketing. Your Company continued to make investment in sales and marketing. The sales team at

Persistent Systems, Inc., was further strengthened with the appointment of Mr. Ramchandran Kumar as Senior Vice

President – Strategic Accounts Sales, Mr. Michael Kerr as Senior Vice President of Sales and Mr. Bradley Scott, Vice

President – Channel Sales. Further, with the view to diversify the business operations in European region, your Company

appointed Dr. Jörg Turnhoff as Vice President - EMEA Sales in Germany.

Financial results

During the financial year 2008-09, your Company continued its track record of growth despite challenging business

environment. Albeit, it could have done better but for overall global economic slowdown.

The total income of your Company amounted to Rs. 5,270.68 Million (USD 113.47 Million) registering a growth of 29%

over the previous year (in Rupee terms), however, the net profit after tax and extra ordinary items declined to Rs. 586.04

Million (USD 12.62 Million), a decline of 30% over the previous year (in Rupee terms).

The highlights of the financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2009 are as under

(Amount in USD Million (Amount in Rs. Million %

Particulars except EPS and  except EPS and Change

Book Value) Book Value)

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08

Total income  113.47  102.06 5,270.68 4,098.87 29%

Profit before interest, depreciation and taxes  19.53  29.19  907.05 1,172.27 -23%

Depreciation  6.34  6.92  294.72  277.97 6%

Provision for income tax  0.25  0.55  11.56  22.00 -47%

Net profit for the year before exceptional

and prior period items  12.94  21.72  600.77  872.30 -31%

Net profit for the year after exceptional

and prior period items  12.62  20.84  586.04  837.12 -30%

Transfer to general reserve  5.05  8.34 234.40  334.90 -30%

Net worth  77.44  84.21 3,926.04 3,381.95 16%

Earnings per share (basic) (EPS)      

Including exceptional and prior period items  0.39  0.73  18.34  29.30 -37%

Excluding exceptional and prior period items  0.40  0.76  18.80  30.53 -38%

Earnings per share (diluted) (EPS)      

Including exceptional and prior period items  0.35  0.58  16.34  23.34 -30%

Excluding exceptional and prior period items  0.36  0.61  16.75  24.33 -31%

Book value per equity share 2.36  2.35 109.48  94.31 16%

[Conversion Rate: USD 1= Rs. 46.45 for Profit and Loss items USD 1 = 50.70 for Balance Sheet items (financial year

2008-09) and USD 1 = Rs. 40.16 (financial year 2007-08)].

Report of the Directors
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On a consolidated basis, the total income of your Company and its subsidiaries amounted to Rs. 6,006.84 Million

(USD 129.32 Million) and the net profit after tax and exceptional items amounted to Rs. 660.92 Million

(USD 14.23 Million).

Liquidity

Your Company continued to be a debt free company and maintains sufficient cash to meet your Company’s strategic

objectives. Your Company has ensured balance between earning adequate returns on liquid assets and the need to cover

financial and business risks. As at March 31, 2009, your Company had cash and cash equivalents amounting to Rs. 940.02

Million as against 752.20 Million as at March 31, 2008, which include investments in liquid mutual funds of Rs. 871.09

Million as against Rs. 691.35 Million as at March 31, 2008.

Dividend

Your Directors declared Interim Dividend twice during the financial year 2008-09. First Interim Dividend was declared at

Re. 0.60 per share on the paid up equity share capital on a pro-rata basis. Your Directors declared second interim dividend

at Re. 0.40 per share on the paid up share capital on a pro-rata basis. The total dividend declared by your Directors for the

financial year 2008-09 was Re. 1 per share amounting to Rs. 35.86 Million and dividend tax was Rs. 6.09 Million. Total

outflow on account of dividend payout including dividend tax was Rs. 41.95 Million out of the net profits of the Company

during the year under report.

Your Directors consider the same as adequate and recommend no further dividend for the financial year 2008-09. During

the financial year 2008-09, your Company did not have any unclaimed dividend out of dividend declared till date.

Employee stock option plans

Your Company has various stock option plans for its employees. Details of the options granted under various employee

stock option schemes form part of the Report on Corporate Governance and Notes to Accounts.

Subsidiary companies

Your Company had four subsidiaries viz. Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited, India, Persistent Systems and Solutions

Limited, India, Persistent Systems, Inc., USA and Persistent Systems Pte. Limited, Singapore as on March 31, 2009.

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited (PeBS) is an India based wholly owned subsidiary of your Company formed in May

2000. PeBS is formed mainly to provide software development, consultancy and system integration services to the India

based clients.

During the financial year 2008-09, PeBS recorded a total income of Rs. 85.09 Million (USD 1.83 Million) [Previous year

Rs. 36.82 Million (USD 0.92 Million)] and a net profit of Rs. 4.53 Million (USD 0.10 Million) [Previous year Rs. 9.77 Million

(USD 0.24 Million)].

Persistent Systems, Inc.

Persistent Systems, Inc., (PSI) is the US based wholly owned subsidiary of your Company formed in October 2001. PSI is

engaged in providing services to the US based customers.

During the financial year 2008-09, PSI recorded a total income of Rs. 1,226.17 Million (USD 26.40 Million) [Previous year

Rs. 709.38 Million (USD 17.66 Million)] and a net profit of Rs. 61.65 Million (USD 1.33 Million) [Previous year loss of

Rs. 17.82 Million (USD 0.44 Million)].

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited (Co. Reg. No. 200706736G) is a Singapore based wholly owned subsidiary of your Company

formed in April 2007. Persistent Systems Pte. Limited is primarily formed to concentrate on the business opportunities in

ASEAN region.

During the financial year 2008-09, Persistent Systems Pte. Limited, recorded a total income of Rs. 2.56 Million (USD 0.06

Million) [previous year Rs. 10.79 Million (USD 0.27 Million)] and a net profit of Rs. 0.39 Million (USD 0.01 Million) [previous

year Rs. 2.65 Million (USD 0.07 Million)].
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Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited (PSSL) is an India based wholly owned subsidiary of your Company formed in

May 2008. PSSL was formed mainly to provide software development services as a unit in SEZ.

During the financial year 2008-09, PSSL recorded a total income of Rs. 35.25 Million (USD 0.76 Million) and a net profit

of Rs. 8.33 Million (USD 0.18 Million).

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements of your Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2009 are prepared in accordance

with the Accounting Standard 21 (AS – 21) on ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India, form part of this Annual Report.

Particulars required as per section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956

As per Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, your Company is required to attach the Directors’ Report, Auditors’

Report, Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Schedules to Accounts and Notes to Accounts of subsidiaries of your

Company alongwith the Balance Sheet of your Company. Your Directors believe that the consolidated financial statements

present a more comprehensive picture as compared to standalone financial statements. Your Company, therefore, applied

to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India for an exemption from such attachment as your Company

presents the audited consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, vide its letter no. 47/10/2009-CL-lll dated February 17, 2009,

granted an exemption to your Company from attaching full financial statements of the subsidiaries under Section 212 of

the Companies Act, 1956.

Accordingly, the Annual Report does not contain full financial statements of the subsidiaries. Your Company will make

available the audited annual accounts and related information of the subsidiary companies, upon request by any

shareholder of your Company. These documents will also be available for inspection during business hours at the registered

office of your Company and the registered office of respective subsidiaries. A statement showing financial highlights of

the subsidiary companies is attached to the consolidated financial statements.

Key recruitments

During the financial year 2008-09, Mr. Hari Haran was appointed as President, Persistent Systems, Inc., wholly owned

subsidiary of your Company (PSI). Further, Mr. Ramchandran Kumar was appointed as Senior Vice President – Strategic

Accounts Sales, PSI; Mr. Michael Kerr as Senior Vice President of Sales for IBM initiatives, PSI; Mr. Bradley Scott, Vice

President – Channel Sales, PSI. Your Company appointed Dr. Jörg Turnhoff as Vice President - EMEA Sales during the

financial year 2008-09.

Significant events in the year 2008-09

1. Your Company had set up a new subsidiary “Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited” (PSSL) which was incorporated

on May 22, 2008. PSSL obtained the Certificate of Commencement of Business on May 31, 2008. PSSL is formed

mainly to provide software development services as a unit to be set up within a SEZ. PSSL has set up a unit in an SEZ

at Cyberabad, Hyderabad.

2. To facilitate your Company’s efforts to pursue offshore business opportunities in Canada through an onsite presence,

your Company has set up an additional Branch Office in Quebec province in addition to the existing Branch offices

in Ontario and British Columbia Provinces.

3. Your Company through its wholly owned subsidiary, Persistent Systems, Inc., established a research center at

Indiana University, Bloomington to increase your Company’s domain capability, to get access to faculty members

who have domain expertise in areas of interest to your Company and its customers and to collaborate with Indiana

University in research related activities.
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4. The Company has opened a new Branch Office through its wholly owned subsidiary Persistent Systems, Inc. in Ohio

to transact business with the Ohio State University Comprehensive Cancer Centre, Ohio.

5. Your Company submitted an application for setting up a Research Centre in affiliation of the University of Pune.

The Research Centre would provide an impetus to research within the Company as a launching pad for new

technologies and related service offerings. This research would help obtain solutions to the industry problems and

would help in expanding your Company’s knowledge base.

6. To institutionalise the Corporate Social Responsibility of your Company, your Company formed a public charitable

trust “Persistent Foundation”. The details of the trust are given under the head “Corporate Social Responsibility” in

this report.

Initial public offering (IPO) of your Company

During the financial year 2008-09, your Company filed a Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of your Company. Your Company further

obtained in-principle approval from the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India

Limited (NSE) to list its shares post IPO. However, due to adverse sentiments in the financial markets in India and abroad,

your Directors decided to defer the IPO.

Awards and recognitions

Your Directors are glad to report the following awards received by your Company during the financial year 2008-09.

1. Your Company won the coveted NASSCOM Innovation Award for 2008, in the “Market Facing - Business Process

and Business Model” category. The NASSCOM Innovation Awards is an annual event currently in its fifth edition

and is a key initiative by NASSCOM to highlight the true innovators in the Indian IT industry. The award recognises

companies that have made innovation a part of their organisational DNA and used the innovation engine to

reinvent their processes, marketing and product development strategies.

2. Your Company won the ICAI Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The Annual Report for the year ended

March 31, 2008, was adjudicated as a commendable entry amongst the entries received under the Category

‘Information Technology, Communication and Entertainment enterprises’.

3. Your Company ranked 9th on Fast Company’s Fast 50 Reader Favorites of 2008. Fast Company was looking for

companies using ‘business as a force of positive change and helping its customers’ and your Company was identified

as a company practicing it.

Dr. Anand Deshpande, Founder and the Chairman and Managing Director of your Company was honoured with the

Career Achievement Award by the Indiana University School of Informatics. The Career Achievement Award is given to

alumni in recognition of outstanding contributions and innovation that bring national acclaim and recognition to the

field of informatics and honour and distinction to Indiana University.

Dr. Anand Deshpande was also honoured with the Top Management Consortium (TMC) Award of Excellence, 2007-08.

The Top Management Consortium bestows Awards of Excellence to recognise and appreciate contribution in specific

areas like industry, trade, service industry, public administration and for offering extraordinary services to the society.

Directors

Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham, Director is liable to retire by rotation at the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting and he

has confirmed his eligibility and willingness to accept office of Directorship of your Company, if reappointed. A brief

profile of Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham forms part of the notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the opinion of your Directors, Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham has the requisite qualifications and experience which

would be useful to your Company and would enable him to contribute effectively to your Company in his capacity as

independent director of your Company.



20

Nineteenth Annual Report 2008-2009

It is, therefore, considered prudent that your Company should continue to avail of the services of Prof. Krithivasan

Ramamritham as a Director and recommends that the resolution relating to the reappointment of Prof. Krithivasan

Ramamritham, as Director of your Company be passed.

Committees of the board

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of your Company had constituted the Nomination and Governance

Committee of the Board. The Committee was mainly formed to ensure overall diversity of representatives and provide

guidance to the Board for appointment of top management and to address issues such as required expertise, background,

leadership skills, time available, conflict of interest, willingness to participate actively and amicable relationships of the

proposed appointee within the industry as a director or member of the senior management. The detailed composition of

the Committees of the Board forms part of the Report on Corporate Governance which is annexed to this Report.

Corporate governance

A separate section on “Corporate Governance” with a detailed compliance report thereon is annexed to this Report.

Voluntary secretarial compliance certificate

Your Company annually obtains a compliance certificate from the whole time Practicing Company Secretary on a voluntary

basis to ensure compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The same is annexed to this Report. The

Institute of Company Secretaries of India, vide its letter dated September 22, 2008, appreciated the initiative taken by

your Company, for obtaining Voluntary Secretarial Compliance Certificate.

Management discussion and analysis

Report on Management Discussion and Analysis based on audited, consolidated financial statements for the year

2008-09 forms part of this Report.

Outlook

The  economic slowdown continues through the first quarter. Since January 2009, representatives of your Company have

met with executives for more than 150 customers and the long-term prospects look very good.

The economic slowdown which set in financial year 2008-09, may continue to show its effect in the financial year

2009-10. The financial year 2009-10 will be an overall challenging year for the world economy.

While the situation is challenging, there are definite growth opportunities and your Company is well poised to grab

these. Your Company is exploring new growth areas and making use of its available resources to be prepared for business

opportunity when the markets turnaround. The economic recovery, when it comes, will see many companies investing

again in IT infrastructure and your Company sees opportunities to come.

The addition of senior seasoned executives to the sales team will help your Company to face the challenges of the

economic turmoil and your management is cautiously optimistic about the future of your Company.

Human resource management

Your Company recruited about 1,500 (technical and non-technical) professionals as a part of growth plan during the

year ended March 31, 2009, including several qualified and experienced professionals returning from USA. This steady

stream of US returning professionals has provided a very strong middle management group. Your Company continues to

attract the best talent available from various engineering colleges in India.

Your Company crossed the strength of 4,000 personnel during the year under report. The technical strength at present

comprises 2,597 graduate engineers of which 206 are post graduates and 17 are the PhDs.

The consolidated human resource strength of your Company and its subsidiaries crossed 4,200 that include trainees and

associates.

Your Company considers training as an important activity towards human resource development. In this endeavour,

several courses, seminars and conferences in technical and domain specific areas were conducted. Your Company also

conducted training courses for the benefit of the employees in different areas such as leadership skills, team building,

personal effectiveness and foreign languages.
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With a view to control attrition, your Company had taken various measures on the front of compensation, communication

forum through skip level meeting, implementation of career tracks and arrangement with BITS Pilani to impart education

in MS Program to employees of your Company.

Your Company’s value proposition is based on providing value to our customers, through innovation and by consistently

improving efficiency. When the market starts to move again, there would be a large number of opportunities available,

as businesses move to address the gap created by sudden retraction of capital and other expenditure and the emerging

needs for the future. With a view to create bandwidth for the future, your Company initiated various measures such as

investing in new skills, technologies, business models and training programmes for key technology areas.

In addition to the earlier initiatives at Pune facility, your Company initiated a Yoga and Doctor facility at Nagpur and Goa

during the year under review. Lectures were organised for the employees on “Diet for Professionals” and also for female

employees for awareness about harassment and their rights. The Company has an effective mechanism for preventing

harassment events including sexual harassment within the Company which ensures that each individual gets right to

work in a professional environment that promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits discriminatory practices.

The Company continued to provide facility for comprehensive health check-up for employees of age 30 and above.

Further, cancer awareness session and free eye check – up camp were organised by your Company.

The attrition for the year under report was 13.54% as against 20.4% for the previous financial year 2007-08. Various

employee welfare activities such as sports and cultural events that were organised for and by the employees had wide

participation at all levels.

As your Company plans to scale up the operations during the financial year 2009-10, it expects to hire additional 1,800

software professionals in its offshore development centres across Pune, Goa, Nagpur and Hyderabad.

With an objective to develop female leaders in the organisation by identifying, nurturing & empowering the leadership

abilities in female employees, a Leadership Development forum “Prerana” was started on the occasion of Women’s day.

The focus of the forum was on providing leadership training to the female employees in the areas like work-life balance,

people management skills, problem solving, project management and share their knowledge in different areas through

various events/ activities lectures/ sessions/ seminars, group discussions, presentations. This also provides a platform to

share the knowledge and experience with each other thereby building togetherness.

Corporate social responsibility

Your Company recognises its social obligations. As a responsible corporate citizen, your Company has a well defined

donation policy to earmark certain funds for donations. Donations are given primarily to organisations or institutions

that are engaged in activities relating to promotion of education, health, community welfare, police welfare related

activities and in the events of national calamity.

In this endeavor, during the year under report, your Company donated major portion towards the health and education

related activities followed by institutes for community welfare and the working for mentally challenged persons.

To institutionalise the Corporate Social Responsibility initiative of your Company, your Company has formed a Public

Charitable Trust by the name “Persistent Foundation” (Foundation) during the year under report. The Foundation will

initially focus on making donations in the field of education, healthcare, community development and specific noticeable

contribution to the cause of national or public importance. Your Company donated a sum of Rs. 13 Million towards the

corpus of the Foundation during the year under report. The Foundation will also provide a platform to employees who

wish to contribute in cash or in kind towards philanthropic activities.

Employees’ remuneration

Information as per Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees)

Rules, 1975, as amended, forms part of this report. As per the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act,

1956, the Annual Report is being sent to all the Shareholders of the Company, excluding, the statement of particulars of

employees referred to hereinbefore. Any Shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the said statement may write to

the Company Secretary of the Company at the Registered Office of your Company.
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Conservation of energy, technology absorption, research and development, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Your Company has made the necessary disclosures in this Report in terms of Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act,

1956, read with the Company (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988. Your

Company strives to conserve energy on a perpetual basis. Your Company has procured various energy saving devices and

systems, which help in conserving energy. Bulk of the electric fixtures is equipped with electronic ballast which has

resulted in significant savings in the energy cost.

Your Company has continued to maximise the use of flat LCD monitors, VRV air-conditioning system, solar energy for hot

water and LED logo on the buildings for conservation of energy. A building automation system has been implemented to

control working of air conditioners and to make them more power efficient.

Green Persistent Movement

As an organisation, your Company believes that reducing global warming is our social responsibility and we must ensure

that we make our planet a better place to live. In our endeavor to conserve and save the environment, your Company

launched the Green Persistent Movement. Your Company had taken a number of initiatives which would help us in

making your Company Green and thereby contributing to a greener planet. The Green Persistent Movement was taken

up with the following objectives in mind

1. To be an eco friendly organisation by being aware, sensitive and proactive towards development and protection of

the environment.

2. To encourage and motivate employees to follow eco friendly practices leading to a nature friendly work place, life

style and society.

The movement mainly covers for areas of environment conservation viz. conservation of energy, conservation of trees,

pollution control and waste management.

The following initiatives were taken by your Company during the year under Report, under Green Persistent Movement

1. Thursday drives were conducted to motivate employees to follow environment friendly practices for a day in a

week with an intention to make it a part of their lifestyle.

2. The conservation of energy campaign was introduced to bring down energy consumption and thus conserve energy.

The energy conservation campaign had three initiatives viz. 100% CPU energy conservation, no hand driers and

switch off cubicle lights and no lift day.

3. The conservation of trees campaign was introduced to spread awareness about conservation of trees and motivate

the employees to contribute effectively towards the cause. Employees of your Company were encouraged to conserve

trees and plant atleast one sapling in their vicinity. The conservation of trees campaign had three initiatives viz.

sapling distribution, no printer day and celebrating green Dassera.

4. The pollution control campaign was introduced to promote pollution control activities and contribute towards a

clean environment. The employees were encouraged to ensure that their vehicle does not contribute to air pollution

than the prescribed norms. The pollution control campaign had three initiatives viz. PUC check, launch of car/ bike

pooling page on your Company’s intranet and no smoking day.

5. The waste management initiative was initiated to ensure the reduction in waste at all levels in routine activities. The

waste management campaign has three initiatives viz. reduction in food wastage, no plastic day, reuse of paper

used on one side.

6. This year, to celebrate Diwali in a special way, your Company presented its employees with CFL bulbs as Diwali gift

to support the Green Persistent Movement. CFL bulbs use lesser electricity than conventional incandescent bulbs

and thus help reduce greenhouse gas emissions. More than 12,000 CFL bulbs were distributed at all locations of

your Company.



23

Persistent Systems Limited

As power costs constitute an insignificant part of the total expenses, the financial impact of these measures is not

material. As your Company has not entered into technical collaboration with any entity, there are no particulars relating

to technology absorption.

The particulars of expenditure on research and development (accrual basis) are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08

Capital expenditure - 1.30

Revenue expenditure 56.10 47.14

Total research and development expenditure 56.10 48.44

As % of total income 1 1

During the financial year 2008-09, most of the revenue of your Company was derived from the exports. Your Company has

a strong business development team mainly in the US. Your Company continues to invest in the sales team and has staffed

the team with experienced people during the year to ensure that your Company’s focus on exports continues. Based on the

development of the market for the Outsourced Product Development, your Company has expanded its activities in Europe

and Canada and this will further add to the export earnings of your Company.

The particulars of foreign exchange earnings and outgo (accrual basis) are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08

Revenue

Earnings 5,030.19 3,754.24

Outgo 397.13 339.40

Capital items

Outgo 340.97 109.16

Reappointment of statutory auditors

M/s. Joshi Apte & Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants, the joint auditors of

your Company retire at the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting and have confirmed their eligibility and willingness to

accept office, if reappointed.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors state that

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable mandatory Accounting Standards have been followed and

there is no material departure;

2. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company as at March

31, 2009 and of the profit of your Company for that year;

3. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities, if any;

4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Report on Corporate Governance

Company’s philosophy on corporate governance

“Corporate Governance is concerned with holding the balance between economic and social goals and between individual

and communal goals. The corporate governance framework is there to encourage the efficient use of resources and

equally to require accountability for the stewardship of these resources. The aim is to align as nearly as possible the

interests of individuals, corporations and society”.

Sir Adrian Cadbury

‘Global Corporate Governance Forum’, World Bank 2000

The Company believes that Corporate Governance is a set of guidelines to help to fulfill its responsibilities to all its

stakeholders i.e. investors, customers, vendors, Government employees, associates and society. It is a voluntary code of

self-discipline to ensure transparency, accountability and integrity. The Company has set its corporate governance

philosophy to enhance the long-term value of Company’s stakeholders.

The Company believes that Corporate Governance is not restricted to Boards and audit committees. It is an approach to

sustainable development. Good Governance is an essential ingredient of good business. With this view, the Company

continued with its initiative of voluntary adoption of various Corporate Governance measures. The following report on

the voluntary implementation of the Corporate Governance Code is a sincere effort of the Company to follow the

Corporate Governance principles in its letter and spirit.

1. Board of directors

A. Size and composition of the board

The Board of Directors of the Company has a mix of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. Independent

Directors help to maintain the independence of the Board and separate the Board functions of governance and

management. At present, the Company’s Board consists of six members, of whom, two are Executive Directors and four

are Non-Executive Directors of which three are Independent Directors. The Board is headed by an Executive Chairman.

Table 1 gives the present composition of the Board and the number of outside directorships held by each of the directors

as on March 31, 2009.

Table 1 : Board of Directors

Name of the Category Directorships Committee** Chairmanship**

Director membership in

Indian Foreign committees

companies companies

Public* Private

Dr. Anand Chairman and 2 NIL 2 1 NIL

Deshpande*** Managing Director

Mr. S. P. Executive 2 NIL 1 2 NIL

Deshpande*** Director

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent NIL NIL 7 1 NIL

Director

Dr. Promod Haque Non-Executive NIL 5 8 NIL NIL

Director

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent 2 NIL NIL 3 2

Director

Prof. Krithivasan Independent 2 NIL NIL NIL NIL

Ramamritham Director

* Excluding directorship in Persistent Systems Limited.

** Disclosure includes Chairmanship / Membership of Committees as required for computation of maximum number

of Committees of which Director can be Chairman or Member in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

(i.e. Chairmanship / Membership of Audit Committee and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee in all

Indian public companies including Persistent Systems Limited).

*** Except Dr. Anand Deshpande, Chairman and Managing Director and Mr. S. P. Deshpande, Executive Director, who

are the relatives, none of the other Director is related with other Director.
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In this report, the signs below, wherever they appear, denotes the following

Y – Present for the meeting

N – Absent for the meeting

N.A. – Not Applicable

None of the Directors of the Company were members of more than 10 committees nor acted as the Chairman of more

than five committees across all companies in India, in which he is a Director, in terms of the Clause 49 of the Listing

Agreement.

In addition to disclosure of Chairmanship / Membership of Committees of Directors disclosed in Table 1 above, the

chairmanship / membership of Directors of the Company in other Committees is given below

Name of the Director Category Committee* Chairmanship*

Membership  in Committees

Dr. Anand Deshpande Chairman and Managing Director 2 2

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Executive Director 1 NIL

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director 3 NIL

Dr. Promod Haque Non-Executive Director 20 5

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent Director 6 2

Prof Krithivasan Ramamritham Independent Director 6 NIL

* Includes committees (other than Audit Committee and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee) of all

companies in India and aborad, including Persistent Systems Limited.

B. Brief description of terms of reference of the Board of Directors

i. To manage and direct the business and affairs of the Company.

ii. To manage, subject to the Articles of Association of the Company, its own affairs, including planning its composition,

selecting its Chairman, appointing Committees, establishing the terms of reference and duties of Committees and

determining Directors’ compensation.

iii. To act honestly and in good faith in the best interests of the Company.

iv. To exercise due care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

v. To participate directly or through its Committees, in developing and approving the mission of the business, its

objectives and goals and the strategy for their achievement.

vi. To ensure congruence between shareholders’ expectations, Company’s goals, objectives and management

performance.

vii. To monitor the Company’s progress towards its goals and to revise and alter its direction in light of changing

circumstances.

viii. To approve and monitor compliance with all significant policies and procedures by which the Company is operated.

ix. To ensure that the Company operates at all times within applicable laws and regulations and ethical and moral

standards.

x. To ensure that the performance of the Company is adequately reported to shareholders, other stakeholders and

regulators on a timely and regular basis.

xi. To ensure that the audited annual financial statements are reported fairly and in accordance with the Accounting

Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

xii. To ensure that any developments that have a significant and material impact on the Company are reported from

time to time to concerned authorities.

xiii. To act in accordance with the laws and regulations of the country and the Memorandum and Articles of Association

of the Company.
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C. Board meetings and deliberations

The Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman of the Company and Chairman of the respective Board

Committees prepares the agenda and supporting papers for discussion at each Board Meeting and Committee Meetings

respectively. Members of the Board or Committees are free to suggest any item to be included in the agenda, in addition

to their right to bring up matters for discussion at the meeting with the permission of the Chairman.

Information and data that is important to the Board to understand the business of the Company in general and related

matters are tabled for discussion at the meeting. Agenda is circulated in writing to the members of the Board well in

advance of the meeting.

The Board and the Audit Committee meets in executive session, at least, four times during the financial year, mostly at

quarterly intervals inter-alia to review quarterly financial statements and other items on the agenda. Additional meetings

are held, if deemed necessary to conduct the business. Those members of the Board, who are not able to participate in

the Board meetings in-person generally participate in the meeting through tele-conferencing or video conferencing. The

President of Persistent Systems, Inc., the Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Planning Officer and the Chief Financial

Officer of the Company attend the Board meetings upon invitation. The other executives and divisional heads are generally

invited at the meetings on as needed basis. In voluntary compliance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the gap

between two Board Meetings has not exceeded four months. The maximum gap between the two board meetings

during the financial year 2008-09 was 3 months and 6 days.

During the financial year 2008-09, the Board of Directors met 5 times on April 24, 2008, July 30, 2008, August 21, 2008,

October 20, 2008 and January 23, 2009. Table 2 below gives the attendance record of the directors at the Board

Meetings and last Annual General Meeting held on July 30, 2008.

Table 2 : Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting.

Name of the Director <------------------------------ Board Meetings -------------------------------> Annual

April 24, July 30, August 21, October 20, January 23, General

2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 Meeting

Dr. Anand Deshpande Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr. Ram Gupta Y N Y Y Y N

Dr. Promod Haque Y N Y Y Y N

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Y Y Y Y Y Y

Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham Y N Y Y Y N

2. Committees of the board of directors

The Company constituted six committees of the Board of Directors viz. Audit Committee, Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance

Committee, Remuneration Committee, Compensation Committee, Nomination and Governance Committee and Executive

Committee. All committees have a combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Chairman of

all the committees except Compensation Committee and Nomination and Governance Committee is an Independent

Director. Additionally, during the financial year 2008-09, the Company had an IPO Committee for the limited purpose of

managing the proposed IPO process. As a good corporate governance policy, the Company constituted a Nomination and

Governance Committee though it is not requirement under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

As per the charter of respective committees, committees deliberate on the matters referred to it by the Board. Information

and data that is important to the committees to discuss the matter is distributed in writing to the members of the

committees well in advance of the meeting. Recommendations of the committees are submitted to the Board to take

decision on the matter referred.

The members of the committee, who are not able to participate in the meeting physically, generally participate through

tele-conferencing or video conferencing.
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A. Audit Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

An Audit Committee was constituted by the Board at its meeting held on April 23, 2004. With a view to fulfill the Company’s

responsibilities to its stakeholders and continue with its initiative of voluntary adoption of various Corporate Governance

measures, the Board had revised the terms of reference of the Audit Committee vide resolution passed at the meeting held

on August 21, 2008.

The Audit Committee was constituted to ensure prudent financial and accounting practices, fiscal discipline and transparency

in financial reporting. The quarterly audited accounts are reviewed by the Audit Committee and recommended to the

Board for its adoption.

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. All the members of the Committee are financially literate

whereas the Chairman of the Committee is a financial management expert. Table 3 gives the present composition of the

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Table 3 : Composition of the Audit Committee

Name of the Director Category

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Chairman of the Committee and Independent Director

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Executive Director

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director

In addition to the Audit Committee members, the Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor, Statutory Auditors and other

executives attend the meetings upon invitation.

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.

The Committee has the following powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that

the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

ii. To review, with the management, annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with

particular reference to

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in

terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

iii. To review, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

iv. To recommend to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the replacement or removal of the

statutory auditor and fixation of audit fees;
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v. To grant approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

vi. To hold discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

vii. To review management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

viii. To recommend appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor;

ix. To hold discussion with Internal Auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on;

x. To review internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

xi. To review, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of internal control

systems;

xii. To review adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing

and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

xiii. To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors in the matters where there is suspected

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the

board;

xiv. To review financial and risk management policies;

xv. To review report on compliance of laws and risk management, reports issued by Statutory / Internal Auditors;

xvi. To review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

xvii. To review statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by

management;

xviii. To review substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of

non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xix. To develop a policy on the engagement of statutory auditors for non-audit services;

xx. To ensure the compliance with the statutory auditors’ recommendations;

xxi. To meet internal and statutory auditors without presence of the Company’s executive management annually;

xxii. To confirm the engagement of an Independent valuer for the valuation of shares, whenever called for and verify

whether the valuer for valuation has an advisory mandate and had past association with the company management;

xxiii. To review certificates regarding compliance of legal and regulatory requirements;

xxiv. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; and

xxv. To carry out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and entrusted by

the Board.

The Audit Committee is further empowered to do the following

i. To investigate any activity within terms of reference;

ii. To seek information from any employee;

iii. To obtain outside legal professional advice; and

iv. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
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Meetings and attendance

5 meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2008-09. Table 4 gives the details of the attendance

of the members of the Audit Committee at its meetings held during the financial year 2008-09.

Table 4: Details of the attendance at the Audit Committee meetings during the financial year 2008-09

Name of the Director <-------------------------------- Audit Committee Meeting -------------------------------->

April 23, July 30, August 20, October 19, January 22,

2008 2008 2008 2008 2009

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Y Y Y Y Y

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Y Y Y Y Y

Mr. Ram Gupta Y N Y Y Y

B. Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee was constituted on October 04, 2007. The Committee specifically looks

into the redressal of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet,

non-receipt of declared dividends, etc.

The Committee presently consists of three Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. Table 5

gives the present composition of the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Board of Directors.

Table 5 : Composition of the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee

Name of the Director Category

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Chairman of the Committee and Independent Director

Dr. Anand Deshpande Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Executive Director

The Committee was constituted with powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. To supervise and ensure efficient share transfers, share transmission, transposition, etc;

ii. To approve allotment, transfer, transmission, transposition, consolidation, split, name deletion and issue of duplicate

share certificate of Equity Shares of the Company;

iii. To redress shareholder and depositor complaints like non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends,

etc.;

iv. To review service standards and investor service initiatives undertaken by the Company;

v. To address all matters pertaining to Registrar and Transfer Agent including appointment of new Registrar and

Transfer Agent in place of existing one;

vi. To address all matters pertaining to Depositories for dematerialisation of shares of the Company and other matters

connected therewith; and

vii. To attend to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board to investigate any activity within terms of

reference.

Meetings and attendance

The Committee meets as and when a need arises. No meeting of the Committee was held during the financial year

2008-09, however, certain decisions were taken by passing the resolutions by circulation on May 22, 2008 and were

subsequently ratified by the Board at its next meeting.

During the financial year 2008-09, the Committee did not receive any complaint from the shareholders or investors. The

members may contact the Company Secretary of the Company for their queries, if any at the contact details provided in

the Shareholders’ Information in this report.
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C. Remuneration Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted on October 04, 2007. The Remuneration Committee is

constituted to determine the Company’s policy on specific remuneration to the Executive Directors including pension

rights and any compensation payment.

The Committee comprises combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directors. Table 6 gives the present composition

of the Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors.

Table 6 : Composition of the Remuneration Committee

Name of the Director Category

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Chairman of the Committee and Independent Director

Dr. Promod Haque Non-Executive Director

Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham Independent Director

The Committee is constituted with powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. recommendations to the Board about the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors

including pension rights and any compensation payment;

ii. advises to the Board in framing remuneration policy for key managerial persons of the Company from time to time;

iii. attending any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board to investigate any activity within terms of

reference.

Meetings and attendance

1 meeting of the Committee was held during the financial year 2008-09.

Table 7 gives details of attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at its meeting held during the

financial year 2008-09.

Table 7 : Attendance at the  Remuneration Committee meeting held during the financial year 2008-09

Name of the Director April 23, 2008

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Y

Dr. Promod Haque Y

Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham Y

Remuneration policy

i. Managing Director’s salary is linked to the profits of the Company. The rise in the salary is also linked to the increase

in the profits of the Company.

ii. Salary of the Executive Director is decided based on the assessment of the Managing Director. The salary rise is based

on the performance of the Executive Director(s) and is in line with the increase, proposed for other employees. The

revised salary is effective on the same day as is done for all other employees of the Company.

iii. Non-Executive Independent Directors are entitled to commission based on the profitability of the Company.

iv. The total managerial remuneration not to exceed 11% of the net profits of the Company.

Remuneration to the Directors

Table 8 and Table 9 give details of remuneration to Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company respectively.
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Table 8 : Remuneration to Executive Directors (In Rs. Million)

Name Category Year Salary Performance Company’s Perquisite Total

of the ended and linked contribution and other

Director March 31, allowance  incentive /  to provident payments

 Commission and fund

superannuation

Dr. Anand Chairman 2009 4.27 - 0.52 0.20 4.99

Deshpande and 2008 3.64 3.48 0.41 0.35 7.88

Managing

Director

Mr. S. P. Executive 2009 1.70 0.23 N.A. N.A. 1.93

Deshpande Director 2008 1.54 1.25 N.A. N.A. 2.79

2009 5.97 0.23 0.52 0.20 6.92

2008 5.18 4.73 0.41 0.35 10.67

Dr. Anand Deshpande and Mr. S. P. Deshpande were appointed as Chairman and Managing Director and Executive

Director of the Company respectively for a period of five years with effect from April 01, 2007, pursuant to a resolution

of the shareholders dated July 23, 2007. The shareholders have authorised the Board to determine the remuneration of

Chairman and Managing Director and Executive Director within the limits prescribed by them under the above resolution.

The Executive Directors of the Company are not eligible for stock options under the ESOP Schemes of the Company.

Table 9 : Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors (In Rs. Million)

Name of the Director Category Year ended Commission Sitting Fees Total

March 31,

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent Director 2009 0.30 0.13 0.43

2008 0.64 0.12 0.76

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director 2009 0.30 0.09 0.39

2008 0.35 0.02 0.37

Mr. Sandeep Johri 
@

Independent Director 2009 N.A. N.A. N.A.

2008 0.07 – 0.07

Prof. Krithivasan Independent Director 2009 0.30 0.05 0.35

Ramamritham 2008 0.63 0.03 0.66

2009 0.90 0.27 1.17

2008 1.69 0.17 1.86

@ Resigned as a Director of the Company w.e.f. May 10, 2007.

In terms of internal policy of Norwest Venture Partners FVCI - Mauritius, Dr. Promod Haque, voluntarily decided not to

accept sitting fees as well as commission.

Under the ESOA – VIII of the Company, the eligible Independent Non-Executive Directors were granted stock options and the

same are exercisable by the Directors according to the terms of the Scheme. During the year, the Directors were collectively

granted 21,000 Stock Options of the Company under the ESOP Scheme – VIII. Table 10 gives the details of the shares and

Stock Options held by the Independent Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2009 are as follows
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Table 10 : Shareholding and grant of Stock Options to Non-executive Directors

Name of the Director Category Year ended Shares held Stock Options

March 31,

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent Director 2009 7,000 7,000

2008 7,000 * 7,000 **

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director 2009 NIL 7,000

2008 N.A. 7,000 **

Dr. Promod Haque Non-executive Director 2009 N.A. N.A.

2008 N.A. N.A.

Mr. Sandeep Johri
@

Independent Director 2009 7,000 NIL

2008 7,000 * NIL

Prof. Krithivasan Independent Director 2009 7,000 7,000

Ramamritham 2008 7,000 * 7,000 **

2009 21,000 21,000

2008 21,000 21,000

* Post-Bonus Shareholding.

** Equivalent to 2,000 options prior to issuance of bonus shares at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated

September 17, 2007.

@ Resigned as a Director of the Company w.e.f. May 10, 2007.

Reimbursements have been provided to Dr. Promod Haque, Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham and Mr. Ram Gupta for travel

and stay expenses for attending Board and Committee Meetings.

There is no pecuniary and non-pecuniary relationship between the Non-Executive Directors vis–a-vis the Company except

as stated above.

D. Compensation Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The Compensation Committee of the Board was constituted on April 23, 2004. The Board of Directors had revised

constitution and the terms of reference of the Compensation Committee vide resolution passed by way of circulation on

October 04, 2007. Formerly, the scope of the Remuneration Committee was covered under the terms of reference of the

Compensation Committee.

In terms of SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (“SEBI ESOP

Guidelines”), the Company reconstituted a Compensation Committee for the administration and superintendence of the

employee stock options schemes.

The Committee presently consists of three Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Executive Director. Table 11

gives the present composition of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

Table 11 : Composition of the Compensation Committee

Name of the Director Category

Dr. Anand Deshpande Chairman of the Committee and Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent Director
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The Committee is constituted with powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. To decide the quantum of equity shares/ options to be granted under Employee Stock Options Schemes (ESOS), per

employee and the total number in aggregate;

ii. To determine at such intervals, as the Compensation Committee considers appropriate, the persons to whom

shares or options may be granted;

iii. To determine the exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and condition in which

option will lapse on failure to exercise the option within the exercise period;

iv. To decide the conditions under which shares or options vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of

employment for any reason;

v. To lay down the procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of shares or options and to

the exercise price in case of rights issues, bonus issues and other corporate actions;

vi. To lay down the right of the employee to exercise all the options vested in him at one time or at various points of

time within the exercise;

vii. To specify the grant, vest and exercise of shares/ option in case of employees who are on long leave;

viii. To construe and interpret the plan and to establish, amend and revoke rules and regulations for its administration. The

Compensation Committee may correct any defect, omission or inconsistency in the plan or any option and/or vary/

amend the terms to adjust to the situation that may arise;

ix. To approve transfer of shares in the name of employee at the time of exercise of options by such employee under ESOS;

x. To lay down the procedure for cashless exercise of options; and

xi. To attend to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board.

Meetings and attendance

The Committee meets as and when need arises for the same. No meeting was held during the financial year 2008-09.

E. Executive Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The Executive Committee of the Board was constituted on January 29, 2005. The Board of Directors had revised constitution

of the Committee vide resolution passed by way of circulation on October 04, 2007. The Executive Committee was constituted

to review the implementation of decisions taken by the Board of Directors. The Committee presently consists of four

Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. Table 12 gives the present composition of the

Executive Committee.

Table 12 : Composition of the Executive Committee

Name of the Director Category

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Chairman of the Committee and Independent Director

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Executive Director

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director

Dr. Promod Haque Non-Executive Director

The Committee is constituted with powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. To review and follow up on the action taken on the Board decisions;

ii. To review the operations of the Company in general;
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iii. To review the systems followed by the Company;

iv. To examine proposal for investment in real estate;

v. To review, propose and monitor annual budget including additional budget, if any, subject to the ratification of the

Board;

vi. To review capital expenditure against the budget;

vii. To authorise opening and closing of bank accounts;

viii. To authorise additions/deletions to the signatories pertaining to banking transactions;

ix. To approve investment of surplus funds for an amount not exceeding Rs. 25 Crores as per the policy approved by the

Board;

x. To approve transactions relating to foreign exchange exposure including but not limited to forward cover and derivative

products;

xi. To approve donations as per the policy approved by the Board;

xii. To delegate authority to the Company officials to represent the Company at various courts, government authorities

and so on; and

xiii. To attend to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board to investigate any activity within terms of

reference.

Further, the Executive Committee is empowered to do the following

i. To seek information from any employee as considered necessary;

ii. To obtain outside legal professional advice as considered necessary;

iii. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise; and

iv. To investigate any activity within terms of reference.

Meetings and attendance

The Executive Committee meets as and when need arises for the same. No meetings of the Executive Committee were held

during the financial year 2008-09, however, certain decisions were taken by passing the resolution by circulation on

January 2, 2009 and were subsequently ratified by the Board at its next meeting.

F. Nomination and Governance Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The Nomination and Governance Committee of the Board was constituted on August 21, 2008. The Committee was

formed mainly to ensure overall diversity of representatives and provide guidance to the Board for appointment of top

management and to address issues such as required expertise, background, leadership skills, time available, conflict of

interest, willingness to participate actively and inter-organisational relationships of the proposed appointee as a director

or member of the senior management. The Chairman of the Committee is an Executive Director. Table 13 gives the present

composition of the Nomination and Governance Committee.

Table 13 : Composition of the Nomination and Governance Committee

Name of the Director Category

Dr. Anand Deshpande Chairman of the Committee and Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Ram Gupta Independent Director

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent Director

Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham Independent Director
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The Committee was constituted with powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. To develop a pool of potential director candidates for consideration in the event of a vacancy on the Board of

Directors;

ii. To determine the future requirements for the Board as well as its Committees and make recommendations to the

Board for its approval;

iii. To identify, screen and review individuals qualified to serve as executive directors, non–executive directors and

independent directors;

iv. To provide its recommendation to the Board for appointment of CEO;

v. To evaluate the current composition and governance of the Board of Directors and its Committees and make appropriate

recommendations to the Board, whenever necessary;

vi. To review the suitability for continued service as a director of each Board member when his or her term expires and

when he or she has a significant change in status such as employment change etc., and shall recommend whether or

not the director should be re-appointed;

vii. To evaluate and recommend termination of membership of an individual director for cause or for other appropriate

reasons;

viii. To evaluate and make recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the appointment of Directors to Board

Committees and the Chairman for each of the Board Committees;

ix. To recommend to the Board candidates for (i) nomination for re-election of Directors by the Shareholders; and (ii) any

Board vacancies which are to be filled by the Board;

x. To play a consultative role for any appointment at top management level namely, COO, CMO, CFO, President of

Persistent Systems, Inc., or appointment requiring Board approval such as Company Secretary;

The Nomination and Governance Committee was further empowered to

i. To conduct or authorise studies of matters within the Committee’s scope of responsibility with full access to all

books, records, facilities and personnel of the Company;

ii. To hire legal, accounting, financial or other advisors in their best judgment;

iii. To have sole authority to retain or terminate any search firm to be used to identify Director candidates;

iv. To have sole authority to approve the search firm’s fees and other retention terms;

v. The Committee may act on its own in identifying potential candidates, inside or outside the Company or may act

upon proposals submitted by the Chairman of the Board; and

vi. The Committee may consider advice and recommendations from the management, shareholders or others, as it

deems appropriate.

Meetings and attendance

One meeting of the Committee was held during the financial year 2008-09. Table 14 gives attendance record of members

of the Committee at its meeting held during the financial year 2008-09.

Table 14 : Attendance at the Nomination and Governance Committee meeting during the financial year 2008-09

Name of the Director October 19, 2008

Dr. Anand Deshpande Y

Mr. Ram Gupta Y

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Y

Prof. Krithivasan Ramamritham N
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G. IPO Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The IPO Committee of the Board was constituted on April 30, 2007. The Committee was a special purpose Committee that

was formed to oversee the functions involved in the Initial Public Offering of the Company and to facilitate the administrative

convenience for quick decision-making. The Chairman of the Committee was an Executive Director. Table 15 gives the

present composition of the IPO Committee.

Table 15: Composition of the IPO Committee

Name of the Director Category

Dr. Anand Deshpande Chairman of the Committee and Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Executive Director

Dr. Promod Haque Non-Executive Director

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Independent Director

The Committee was constituted with powers and responsibilities including but not limited to

i. To decide on the timing, pricing and all the terms and conditions of the issue of the shares for the Public Issue,

including the price and to accept any amendments, modifications, variations or alterations thereto;

ii. To appoint and enter into arrangements with the book running lead managers (BRLM), underwriters to the Public

Issue, syndicate members to the Public Issue, brokers to the Public Issue, escrow collection bankers to the Public Issue,

registrars, legal advisors and any other agencies or persons or intermediaries to the Public Issue and to negotiate and

finalise the terms of their appointment, including but not limited to execution of the BRLM’s mandate letter, negotiation,

finalisation and execution of the memorandum of understanding with the BRLM, etc.;

iii. To finalise and settle and to execute and deliver or arrange the delivery of the draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red

Herring Prospectus, the final Prospectus, syndicate agreement, underwriting agreement, escrow agreement and all

other documents, deeds, agreements and instruments as may be required or desirable in relation to the Public Issue;

iv. To open with the bankers to the Public Issue such accounts as are required by the regulations issued by SEBI;

v. To do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such other documents, etc., as it may, in its absolute

discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose, including without limitation, finalise the basis of allocation

and to allot the shares to the successful allottees as permissible in law, issue of share certificates in accordance with

the relevant rules;

vi. To do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to dematerialise the Equity Shares of the Company and to

sign agreements and/or such other documents as may be required with the National Securities Depository Limited, the

Central Depository Services (India) Limited and such other agencies, authorities or bodies as may be required in this

connection;

vii. To make applications for listing of the shares in one or more stock exchange(s) for listing of the Equity Shares of the

Company and to execute and to deliver or arrange the delivery of necessary documentation to the concerned stock

exchange(s); and

viii. To settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise about such issues or allotment as it may, in its absolute

discretion deem fit.

The IPO Committee was further empowered to do the following

i. To approve, adopt and file the prospectus for the Public Issue as required under Section 60 of the Companies Act,

1956, with the Registrar of Companies, Pune and to make any corrections or alterations therein;
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ii. To do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required in connection with the Public Issue and to comply

with all requirements of the Companies Act, 1956 in this regard.

Meetings and attendance

One meeting of the Committee was held during the financial year 2008-09. Table 16 gives attendance record of members

of the IPO Committee at its meeting held during the financial year 2008-09.

Table 16: Attendance at the IPO Committee meeting during the financial year 2008-09

Name of the Director July 14, 2008

Dr. Anand Deshpande N

Mr. S. P. Deshpande Y

Dr. Promod Haque N

Mr. P. B. Kulkarni Y

3. Subsidiary Companies

The Company does not have any material non listed Indian subsidiary Company, whose turnover or net worth (paid up

capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or net worth of the Company.

Further, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors review the consolidated financial statements of the Company and

its subsidiary companies on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors look into the related party transactions entered into by the Company

including those with the subsidiary companies.

Details of percentage holding of the Company in the subsidiary companies

Name of the Subsidiary Company Registered in Holding percentage

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited India 100%

Persistent Systems, Inc. U.S.A. 100%

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited Singapore 100%

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited India 100%

4. General meeting details

A. Details of last three years Annual General Meetings (AGM) held are as follows

Financial year Date Time Venue

2005-06 July 19, 2006 3.00 p.m. 1-A, Conference Room, “Bhageerath”,

402, Senapati Bapat Road, Pune 411 016

2006-07 July 23, 2007 12.00 noon “Dewang Mehta Auditorium”, “Bhageerath”,

402, Senapati Bapat Road, Pune 411 016

2007-08 July 30, 2008 4.00 p.m. “Dewang Mehta Auditorium”, “Bhageerath”,

402, Senapati Bapat Road, Pune 411 016
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B. Following Special Resolutions were passed by the members during the last three Annual General Meetings

Date of AGM No. Details of Special Resolution

July 19, 2006 NIL

July 23, 2007 i. Appointment of Mr. S. P. Deshpande as an Executive Director of the Company for a term of

five years effective from April 01, 2007.

ii. Appointment of Dr. Mukund Deshpande, brother of Dr. Anand Deshpande, Chairman and

Managing Director and son of Mr. S. P. Deshpande, Executive Director as an employee of the

Company as Technical Manager or such designation given to him in terms of the Company’s

policy from time to time.

iii. Payment of Commission not exceeding one percent of the Net Profits of the Company to all

or any of the Individual Non-executive Directors as decided by the Board of Directors of the

Company from time to time.

July 30, 2008 Issue of Equity Shares not exceeding 6.5 Million of Rs. 10 each of an aggregate face value of

Rs. 65.00 Million through Initial Public Offer of the Company.

The Special resolutions moved at the AGMs above were passed on a show of hands by the shareholders present at the

meeting.

C. No Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held during the financial year 2008-09.

D. No postal ballots were conducted by the Company during the last three financial years.

5. Disclosures

A. Code of conduct

The Company obtains the affirmation compliance of the Code of Conduct from its Directors and Senior Management on

yearly basis since the financial year 2005-06.

The Code of Conduct is an annual declaration that helps to maintain high standards of ethical business conduct for the

Company and promotes. In terms of Code of Conduct, Directors and Senior Management must act within the boundaries

of the authority conferred upon them and with a duty to make and enact informed decisions and policies in the best

interests of the Company and its shareholders and stakeholders. Further, Directors and Senior Management should ensure

that they do not derive any undue personal benefit because of their position in the Company and / or certain confidential

information coming to their knowledge.

The Company has obtained declaration from Directors and Senior Management affirming their compliance to the Code of

Conduct for the current year. The Chairman has affirmed to the Board of Directors that this Code of Conduct has been

complied with by the Board members and Senior Management and a declaration to this effect appears in this report.

Further, in line with the best international governance practices, the Company has introduced the Vendor Code of Conduct

during this year under review that is to be executed by all the vendors prior to providing their services to the Company. This

Code ensures that the vendors of the Company are following the relevant legal and regulatory compliances applicable to

them while working with the Company; and are performing the acceptable business conduct while doing business with or

on behalf of the Company.

B. Whistle blower policy

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy for its employees. The employees are encouraged

to report to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors any fraudulent financial or other information to the stakeholders,

any conduct that results in the instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected violation of the Company’s Code of

Conduct and ethics, which may come to their knowledge.

This policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of employees who report to the Whistle Blower

Administrator. The policy also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.
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C. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests

of the Company

During the financial year 2008-09, there were no materially significant transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships

between the Company and the Promoters, Directors and their relatives and the management that has potential conflict

with the interest of the Company.

Details of all transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties have been disclosed under “Related Party

Transactions” in the Notes to Accounts of the Company which form part of this Annual Report.

D. Risk management and internal control policies adopted by the Company

The report on Risk Management and Internal Control Policies adopted by the Company forms separate part of this

Annual Report.

E. Adherence to accounting standards

The Company follows the mandatory Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India and to the best of its knowledge there are no deviations in the accounting treatments that require specific disclosure.

6. Management discussion and analysis

As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Management Discussion and Analysis is provided elsewhere in

the Annual Report.

7. Shareholders’ Information

A. Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

The Corporate Identity Number (CIN), allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India is

U72300PN1990PLC056696 and the Company Registration Number is 056696. The Company is registered in the State of

Maharashtra, India.

B. General details of the Company

i. Registered Office

“Bhageerath”,

402, Senapati Bapat Road,

Pune 411 016, India.

ii. Financial year of the Company is from 1
st

 of April of every year to 31
st

 of March next year.

iii. Company Secretary of the Company

Mr. Vivek Sadhale

Company Secretary and Head – Legal

“Bhageerath”,

402, Senapati Bapat Road,

Pune 411 016, India.

Tel. : +91 (20) 3024 2000

Fax : +91 (20) 2565 7888

E-mail : corpsec@persistent.co.in

Website : www.persistentsys.com

iv. Dividend payment date

The Company declared interim dividend to the members twice during the financial year 2008-09. The Company

declared the dividend to those members of the Company whose names were registered in the Register of Members

on October 20, 2008 and March 27, 2009.
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v. Contact details of Company’s intermediaries are as follows

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Link Intime India Private Limited,

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

LBS Marg, Bhandup (W),

Mumbai 400 078, India.

Tel. : +91 (22) 2596 3838

Fax : +91 (22) 2594 6969

E-mail : isrl@linkintime.co.in

Website : www.linkintime.co.in

vi. Depositories

a. National Securities Depository Limited,

4
th

 Wing, ‘A’ Wing, Trade World,

Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg,

Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013, India.

Tel. : +91 (22) 2499 4200

Fax : +91 (22) 2497 2993

E-mail : info@nsdl.co.in

Website : www.nsdl.co.in

b. Central Depository Services (India) Limited,

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

17
th

 Floor, Dalal Street,

Fort, Mumbai 400 001, India.

Tel. : +91 (22) 2272 3333

Fax : +91 (20) 2272 3199

E-mail : investors@cdslindia.com

Website : www.cdslindia.com

vii. Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Company’s Equity Shares have been dematerialised with the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)

and the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Security Identification Number (ISIN) is an

identification number for traded shares. This number is to be quoted in each transaction relating to the dematerialised

shares of the Company. The ISIN of the Company for its shares is INE262H01013.

As on March 31, 2009, 35,677,569 Equity Shares comprising 99.49% of the Company’s shares are held in electronic

form.

viii. American Depository Receipts / Global Depository Receipts / Warrants

As on March 31, 2009, the Company has no American Depository Receipts / Global Depository Receipts / Warrants or

any such convertible instruments outstanding and there is no likely impact on the Company’s Equity Shares in the

financial year 2008-09.

ix. Plant locations

The Company is in software business and does not require manufacturing plants. However, it has software development

centres / offices in India and abroad. The addresses of global development centres / offices of the Company are given

elsewhere in the Annual Report.
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x. Calendar for financial reporting for the quarters in the financial year 2008-09 (tentative and subject to change)

Quarter Ending Proposed date of meeting of the Board

June 30, 2009 July 23, 2009

September 30, 2009 October 20, 2009

December 31, 2009 January 22, 2010

March 31, 2010 April 23, 2010

8. ESOP Schemes of the Company

The status of various ESOP schemes as on March 31, 2009 is shown in the following table:

<------------------------------------------------ Plans ------------------------------------------------>

Particulars I II III IV V VI VII VIII Total

Granted a 2,280,250 376,600 1,266,650 2,397,150 945,262 608,125 778,487 21,000 8,673,524

Vested b 1,606,255 222,169 327,652 408,604 208,957 255,713 161,595 5,250 3,196,195

Encashed and

Exercised c 1,553,277 56,385 79,301 - - - - - 1,688,963

Vested & Not

exercised (b-c) d 52,978 165,784 248,351 408,604 208,957 255,713 161,595 5,250 1,507,232

Lapsed e 667,047 107,607 322,462 711,123 246,134 215,250 216,300 - 2,485,923

Not Vested

(a – c - d - e) f 6,948 46,824 616,536 1,277,423 490,171 137,162 400,592 15,750 2,991,406

Total

Outstanding

(d + f ) g 59,926 212,608 864,887 1,686,027 699,128 392,875 562,187 21,000 4,498,638

9. CEO / CFO certification

As required by Clause 49 of the listing agreement, the CEO / CFO certification is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report.

10. Corporate governance handbook

The Company proactively and voluntarily prepared a Corporate Governance Handbook encompassing set of guidelines and

policies with respect to composition of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board, meetings of the Board of

Directors and Committees of the Board, Managerial Remuneration, Code of Conduct, Whistle Blower Policy, Risk Management

Policy, Internal Control Procedures etc., being adhered to by the Company. Corporate Governance Handbook is updated on

annual basis.

11. Voluntary secretarial compliance certificate

The Company annually obtains a compliance certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary on a voluntary basis to

ensure compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The same is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report.

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, vide its letter dated September 22, 2008, appreciated the initiative taken by

the Company for obtaining voluntary secretarial compliance certificate.
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12. Secretarial standards

The Company endeavors to comply to the extent possible and relevant with the non mandatory Secretarial Standards

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

13. Vendor code of conduct

In line with the best global governance practices, the Company had prepared the Vendor Code of Conduct. The Company

is in the process of getting the Vendor Code of Conduct executed by the vendors of the Company.

14. Miscellaneous

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the Company, any change in their address and Bank

Account details under the signature of sole / first joint holder. Beneficial owners of shares in demat form are requested to

send their instructions regarding change of name, change of address, bank details, nomination, power of attorney, etc.,

directly to their Depository Participants (DP) as the same are maintained by the DP.

Non-resident shareholders are requested to notify at the earliest

A. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent establishment.

B. Particulars of their NRE Bank Account with a bank in India, if not furnished earlier.

C. E-mail address, if any.

15. Nomination in respect of shares

Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956, provides facility for making nominations by shareholders in respect of their

holding of shares. Such nomination greatly facilitates transmission of shares from the deceased shareholder to his / her

nominee without having to go through the process of obtaining Succession Certificates / Probate of the Will, etc. It would

therefore, be in the best interests of the shareholders holding shares as a sole holder to make such nomination. Shareholders

holding shares in physical mode are advised to write to the Company Secretary for making nomination. Shareholders

holding shares in demat form are advised to contact their DP for making nominations.

Shareholders are requested to quote their E-mail IDs, Telephone / Fax numbers for prompt reply to their communication.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) certification

We, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that

1. We have reviewed the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the Company (consolidated and standalone) and

all its Schedules and Notes on Accounts, as well as the Cash Flow Statements and the Directors’ Report;

2. Based on our knowledge and information, these statements do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact

or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which the

statements were made, not misleading with respect to the statements made;

3. Based on our knowledge and information, the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the

Company as of and for the periods presented in this report and are in compliance with the applicable Accounting

Standards and / or applicable laws and regulations;

4. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year were fraudulent,

illegal or violate of the Company’s practices;
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5. The Company’s other certifying officers and we are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures for the Company and we have

A. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its subsidiaries, is

made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

B. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally acceptable accounting

principles;

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure, controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation; and

D. disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the Company’s most recent fiscal year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the

Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

6. The Company’s other certifying officers and we have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation, wherever

applicable, to the Company’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors.

A. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, which could adversely affect the Company’s

ability to record, process, summarise and report financial data and have identified for the Company’s auditors, any

material weakness in internal controls over financial reporting including any corrective actions with regard to

deficiencies, if any;

B. instances of any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant

role in the Company’s internal controls; and

C. significant changes in internal controls during the year are covered by this report.

7. There was no change in accounting policies during the year.

8. We affirm that we have not denied any personnel, access to the Audit Committee of the Company (in respect of

matters involving alleged misconduct) and we have provided protection to the ‘whistle blowers’ from unfair termination

and other unfair or prejudicial employment practices; and

9. We further declare that all board members and senior managerial personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code

of Conduct for the financial year 2008-09.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anand Deshpande Rajesh Ghonasgi

Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Pune, June 23, 2009
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VOLUNTARY SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

CIN: U72300PN1990PLC056696

The Members

Persistent Systems Limited,

‘Bhageerath’, 402, Senapati Bapat Road,

Pune 411 016.

I have examined the registers, records, books and papers of Persistent Systems Limited (the Company) as required to be

maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and also the provisions contained in

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year from April 01, 2008 to March 31,

2009. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and explanations

furnished to me by the Company, its officers and agents, I certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year

1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure ‘A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions

and the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded;

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of

Companies and Central Government, within the time prescribed under the Act and the rules made there under;

3. The Company being private limited company has the minimum prescribed paid-up capital and its maximum number

of members during the said financial year was _________ excluding its present and past employees and the company

during the year under scrutiny:

A. has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures, and

B. has not invited or accepted any deposits from person other than its members, directors or their relatives;

Not applicable, since the Company is a Public Limited Company

4. The Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) times on April 24, 2008, July 30, 2008, August 21, 2008, October 20, 2008

and January 23, 2009, in respect of which proper notices were given and proceedings were properly recorded and

signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose including the circular resolutions passed;

5. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) times on April 23, 2008, July 30, 2008, August 20,

2008, October 19, 2008 and January 22, 2009 in respect of which proper notices were given and proceedings were

properly recorded and signed passed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose;

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director. Composition of the Audit Committee was as per section

292A, of the Act.

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Composition of Audit Committee as on the date of the Meeting

1. April 23, 2008 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1(One) Executive Director

2. July 30 , 2008 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1(One) Executive Director

3. August 20, 2008 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1(One) Executive Director

4. October 19, 2008 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1(One) Executive Director

5. January 22, 2009 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1(One) Executive Director



51

Persistent Systems Limited

6. The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors duly met 1 (one) time on April 23, 2008 in respect of

which proper notices were given and proceedings were properly recorded and signed. The composition of the

Compensation Committee as on the date of the meeting was as follows

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Composition of the Committee as on the date of the Meeting

1. April 23, 2008 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1(One) Non Executive Director

7. The Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Board of Directors did not have a meeting during the year

under review. However, a resolution was passed by way of circulation that was later ratified by the Board of Directors

in their next meeting.

8. The Executive Committee of the Board of Directors did not have a meeting during the year under review. However, a

resolution was passed by way of circulation that was later ratified by the Board of Directors in their next meeting.

9. During the year under review, the Company formed the Nomination and Governance Committee of the Board of

Directors. The Nomination and Governance Committee duly met 1 (one) time on October 19, 2008, in respect of

which proper notices were given and proceedings were properly recorded and signed. The composition of the

Nomination and Governance Committee as on the date of the meeting was as follows

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Composition of the Committee as on the date of the Meeting

1. October 19, 2008 1 (One) Executive Director and 3 (Three) Independent Directors

10. The IPO Committee of the Board of Directors duly met 1 (One) time on July 14, 2008, in respect of which proper

notice was given and proceedings were properly recorded and signed.

11. The Annual General meeting for the financial year ended on March 31, 2008,  was held on July 30, 2008, after giving

due notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes Book

maintained for the purpose.

12. No extra ordinary general meeting was held during the period under report.

13. The Company has not advanced any amount as loan to its Directors and / or persons or firms or companies referred

in the section 295 of the Act.

14. The Company has duly complied with the provisions of section 297 of the Act in respect of contracts specified in that

section.

The Company has taken due permission from the Central Government through the Regional Director, Western Region

during the financial year 2005-06, for the Agreement entered into with one of the related parties.

15. The Company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act.

16. The Company made an application to the Central Government, the Ministry of Corproate Affairs on October 29, 2008

under Section 212(8) of the Act for the exemption sought from attaching the Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report,

Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of its Subsidiary Companies to the Balance Sheet to the Company for the

Financial Year 2008-09. The Company has received the approval from the Central Government, the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs bearing No. 47 / 10 / 2009 – CL – III dated February 17, 2009.

17. During the year under review, there was no case of transfer of shares in the Company.

During the year under review, the Company received an application for transmission the shares which was duly

approved by the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Board of Directors.

18. The Company has deposited the amount of dividend declared including interim dividend in a separate bank account

within five days from the date of declaration of such dividend.
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19 The Company has paid / posted warrants for dividends to all the members within a period of 30 (Thirty) days from the

date of declaration and that there is no unclaimed / unpaid dividend.

20. The Company has duly complied with the requirements of section 217 of the Act.

21. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company are duly constituted.

22. The appointment of Managing Director / Whole-time Director has been made in compliance with the provisions of

section 269 read with Schedule XIII to the Act.

23. The Directors have disclosed their interest in other firms / companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the

provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Disclosures made by all Directors under Section 299 of the Act and declarations under Sec. 274(1)(g) of the Act were

available for inspection.

24. The Company has not issued any Equity or Preference Shares during the period under report.

25. The Company has not bought back any securities during the period under report.

26. The amount borrowed by the Company from banks during the financial year ending March 31, 2009, is within the

borrowing limits of the Company.

27. The Company has made investments in other bodies corporate in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to situation of the Company’s registered

office from one state to another during the year under scrutiny.

29. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to the objects of the Company during

the year under scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to the name of the Company during

the year under scrutiny.

31. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to share capital of the Company

during the year under scrutiny and complied with the provisions of the Act;

32. The Company has not altered its articles of association;

33. There is no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company for alleged offences under

the Act.

Shridhar S. Kulkarni

Company Secretary

Pune, June 23, 2009 FCS 5631; CP No. 3950
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ANNEXURE ‘A’

Registers as maintained by the Company

A. Statutory Registers

Sr. No. Name of the Register Maintained Under Section

1. Register of Charges 143

2. Register of Members 150

3. Minutes Books (Board, Committee and General Meetings) 193

4. Register of Contracts 301

5. Register of Directors 303

6. Register of Directors’ Shareholding 307

7. Register of Buy Back of Securities Rule 11

8. Register of Investments made, loan given or guarantees provided 372A

B. Other Registers

Sr. No. Name of the Register Maintained

1. Register for transfer and transmission of shares

2. Directors’ attendance register

3. Members’ attendance register

4. Register for application and allotment of shares

This space is intentionally left blank
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1 eForm 23 Payment of one time Discretionary 192 (4)(c) April 24, May 23, Yes

Bonus to Dr. Anand Deshpande or 2008 2008

financial year 2007-08

2 eForm 23 Payment of remuneration to 192 (4)(c) April 24, May 23, Yes

Dr. Anand Deshpande for 2008 2008

financial year 2008-09

3 eForm 17 Satisfaction of charge in favour 138 May 09, June 03, Yes

of the SBI for Rs. 20 Crores 2008 2008

4 eForm 23 Special resolution for issue of 81 (1A) July 30, August 07, Yes

Equity Shares through Initial 2008 2008

Public Offering

5 eForm 32 Confirmation of appointment of 260 July 30, August 07, Yes

Mr. Ram Gupta as Director in the AGM 2008 2008

6 Sch VI Balance Sheet as on 220 July 30, August 18, Yes

(eForm 23AC March 31, 2008 2008 2008

and 23ACA)

7 Sch V Annual return for the 159 July 30, August 14, Yes

(eForm 20B) financial year 2007-08 2008 2008

8 eForm 23 Revision in terms of payment of 192 (4)(c) August 21, September 18, Yes

Bonus and the remuneration 2008 2008

of Dr. Anand Deshpande

9 eForm Application for exemption from 212(8) NA October 29, NA

23AAB attaching the annual accounts 2008

of the subsidiary companies

Shridhar S. Kulkarni

Company Secretary

Pune, June 23, 2009 FCS 5631; CP No. 3950

Sr. Form For Filed Date Date Whether

No. No/Return u/s of Event of filed

Filling within the

prescribed

time

ANNEXURE ‘B’

Form and Returns as filed by the Company with Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Central Government or other

authorities during the period ending on March 31, 2009
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Business overview

Following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with Persistent Systems Limited’s financial statements

included in this report. Our management accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements.

The estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so

that the financial statements reflect in a true and fair manner the form and substance of translations, and reasonably

present our state of affairs, profits and cash flow for the year.

1. Industry structure and developments

Software Products and services have undergone a shift due to change in economic and business conditions. These

changes have made the market more competitive, this is driving enterprises to transform their operations. Reducing

time to market and building Innovative products are in demand. To ensure these needs are addressed, companies

are focusing on their core competencies and are using outsourced product development / service providers to help

improve productivity, develop new products, sustain older products, conduct research and development, and reduce

business risk.

To be competitive, enterprises have deployed multiple IT solutions. Integrating them together has created a need

for niche service providers which would provide quick solutions keeping in mind the complexity, cost and associated

risk.

A. Need for Innovative solutions

Today’s business climate will require all businesses, in all industries, in all countries, to review their business models

carefully. Innovative and disruptive changes will take place in current business climate. IT departments will be

expected to use technology to improve business efficiency and operate at much lower cost base with high level of

service. Successful businesses plan to innovate and evolve efficient business models that are resilient in constrained

environments.

B. Keeping it agile

Quick time to market and making solutions more useful for the end-consumer is getting critical. Companies are

looking for agile approaches that require their technology service providers to develop quick features and assess

the feasibility much early in the lifecycle. This has to be executed keeping it cost-effective.

C. Distributed delivery model

Enterprises are looking for more cost effective and eventually profitable delivery models. They are looking at

models where a small team remains at their site to manage project coordination and address change in requirements

as the project progresses. They provide access to internal  systems enabling simultaneous processing in our global

development centers.

Processes

Robust and Customizable Processes:

Persistent Systems develops products / applications for a wide variety of customers, ranging  from Fortune 100 customers,

SMB, to startups. Each of these customers need high quality deliverables to be released on-time. Any failure in delivery,

quality, timelines and product features could adversely affect our customers’ own business roadmap. If the customer

already has proven and mandated processes they use, we adopt them for their projects. If the customer processes are

weak or have gaps, we use Persistent processes which are proven in many projects. With over 19 years of experience and

knowledgebase, we have created robust development and delivery processes. Our central quality function conducts

quality audits across projects, training on quality standards, best practices, and collection of quality specific metrics. In

addition, we have a strong focus on automation which reduces the human dependencies and improves code quality. We

also have a corporate architecture review board to ensure the architecture of the solution supports both, the customer’s

short term and long terms goals. This helps customers to rely on us to deliver quality products.

Proactively understanding customer requirements:

Typically products and/or applications undergo a development lifecycle (ideation through end-of-life). Understanding

our customer’s products intimately helps us proactively develop solutions which would help them launch cutting edge

solutions quickly. With Go-To-Live framework, we enable startup companies / projects  with faster time to market giving

them an edge over competition. Solution accelerators (e.g. customizable frameworks and tools developed by Persistent)

are deployed for quick deployment and integration. Matured products need sustenance efforts to provide the end-

customer with same level of support. With intuitive business models we are supporting products which have matured

through the lifecycle.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Security infrastructure

In many of our customer projects, the IP is owned by customers. Ensuring security of our customer’s assets (hardware

and IP) is of utmost importance. Significant investments have been made to ensure the customer, employee and partners

are aware of our security policy and processes. All the security and access requirements from physical access, logical or

physical network isolations or  web filters, are strictly followed. We have been awarded ISO 27000 certificate for security

infrastructure. Investment in physical infrastructure has been made keeping in mind the growth and its affect on

environment. We have initiated a Green Persistent Movement which goes across our infrastructure to individual employees.

HR Initiatives

The Company’s Management addressed every individual of the Company to apprise them of market trends and the

direction that the global economy was taking and its impact on your Company. To boost morale, the Company initiated

an assessment center to address career growth, and aspiration tracking.

As the global economy deteriorated, it was felt that growth initiatives in the form of investment of resource time on

developing new technologies and skills, which could be initiated in developing new skills and tools for helping customers

grow when the economy stabilized and moved on to growth. This would help employees address their personal growth

needs and present the company with assets for future growth.

Financial position and results of operations

The following discussion is based on the audited, consolidated, financial statements of Persistent Systems Limited (the

Company), and its four subsidiaries namely Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited, Persistent Systems, Inc., Persistent

Systems Pte. Limited and Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited. In this report, the Company and its subsidiaries

collectively have been referred as “the Group”, the financial year 2008-09 has been referred as “the year” and the

financial year 2007-08 has been referred as “the previous year”.

Stock options outstanding

The outstanding stock options relate to differences between fair value and grant price of shares arising out of options

granted to employees during the year is amortised over the vesting period of options.

Reserves and surplus

The balance in the foreign currency translation reserve increased to Rs. 16.60 Million as at March 31, 2009 from Rs.

(5.92) Million as at March 31, 2008, due to a translation gain of Rs. 22.52 Million arising during the year on the net

investment in the non-integral, foreign subsidiary companies.

Fixed assets

Gross block of fixed assets amounted to Rs. 3,372.42 Million as at March 31, 2009 as against Rs. 2,928.37 Million as at

March 31, 2008.

Capital work-in-progress (including capital advances) stood at Rs. 377.44 Million as at March 31, 2009 as against

Rs. 330.75 Million as at March 31, 2008.

The following table provides details of assets added during the year (In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year

2008-09

Lease-hold Land 0.95

Building 185.95

Computers 120.03

Software 10.26

Plant and machinery 90.15

Vehicle 2.24

Furniture and fixtures 47.01

456.59

During the year, the Company disposed off / retired assets worth Rs. 14.73 Million comprising of plant and machinery,

computer equipment, furniture, fixture and software.

Investment

The Company deploys its surplus funds generated from operations in liquid schemes, short term schemes and fixed maturity

plans of selected mutual funds with a view to optimise returns on investment. Investment in mutual funds increased to

Rs. 871.09 Million as at March 31, 2009 from Rs. 691.35 Million as at March 31, 2008. The market value of investment in

mutual funds as at March 31, 2009 was Rs. 871.09 Million as against Rs. 692.38 Million as at March 31, 2008.
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Deferred tax assets (Net)

Deferred tax assets (net of deferred tax liability) amounted to Rs. 20.47 Million as at March 31, 2009 as compared to

deferred tax liability of Rs. 2.55 Million as at March 31, 2008.

The increase in deferred tax liability was mainly due to timing difference in relation to depreciation on building as per tax

and as per the Companies Act, 1956.

Sundry debtors

Sundry Debtors (net of provisions) amounted to Rs. 1,034.21 Million as at March 31, 2009 as compared to Rs. 744.89

Million as at March 31, 2008.

The following table provides the age-wise analysis of Sundry Debtors (Net of provision for doubtful debts) as on

March 31, 2009

(In Rs. Million except percentage)

Particulars As at %

March 31,

2009

Not due  455.74 44.07

Due < 30 days  110.76 10.71

Due 30 – 60 days 363.44 35.14

Due 61 – 90 days 54.19  5.24

Due 91 – 120 days  0.82  0.08

Due over 120 days  49.26  4.76

1,034.21 100.00

The Company has a policy of providing for all invoices outstanding for a period of 180 days or more and for those

invoices which are otherwise considered doubtful based on the management’s perception of risk of collection.

Provision for bad and doubtful debts as at March 31, 2009 increased to Rs. 153.40 Million from Rs. 41.68 Million as at

March 31, 2008. This was on account of general deterioration of the global economy, which led to higher delinquencies.

Expenditure towards bad and doubtful debts during the year amounted to 1.89% of revenue of the year as compared to

0.55% in the previous year.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances amounted to Rs. 165.39 Million as at March 31, 2009 as compared to Rs. 113.16 Million as at

March 31, 2008. This comprised mainly balances in the current accounts and deposit accounts of the banks in India and

abroad and the balance held in the Exchange Earners Foreign Currency (EEFC) Accounts in India.

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08

Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi - NS, Japan 0.65 0.29

Bank of America 0.31 0.26

Silicon Valley Bank 67.01 43.23

Citibank NA - Singapore 11.48 4.27

Citibank NA - Canada 7.28 -

Cash  in hand 0.13 0.12

Balance with scheduled banks on current accounts 76.32 60.88

Balance with scheduled banks on deposit accounts 2.21 4.11

165.39 113.16

Other current assets

Other current assets as at March 31, 2009 amounted to Rs. 130.27 Million as compared to Rs. 89.39 Million as at March

31, 2008. The following table shows comparative position of the other current assets as at last two balance sheet dates.
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(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08

Income accrued 0.14  0.13

Unbilled revenue 128.92  89.26

Fixed assets held for sale  1.21  -

130.27  89.39

Income accrued signifies interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks.

Unbilled revenue represents revenue recognised for work done (but not billed until the balance sheet date) in relation to

certain customer contracts as per terms of the contract.

Loans and advances

Loans and advances amounted to Rs. 453.95 Million as at March 31, 2009 as compared to Rs. 403.11 Million as at

March 31, 2008. The following table provides details of significant changes in loans and advances under different heads.

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08

Advance to PSPL ESOP Management Trust 153.83 158.33

Advance income tax 37.83 4.83

Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 45.72 105.45

Value Added Tax (VAT) receivable and service tax receivable 58.36 22.40

MAT credit entitlement 132.44 89.44

Deposits (Net of provision) 25.77 22.66

453.95 403.11

The reduction in advance to the PSPL ESOP Management Trust was due to repayment of the advance amounting to

Rs. 4.50 Million by the PSPL ESOP Management Trust. Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

related to prepaid expenses and other advances in ordinary course of business. VAT receivable represents amounts that

can be claimed as refund as per VAT rules. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement shows amount paid by the

Company towards MAT in excess of its normal income tax liability, which can be set off against future tax liability.

Current liabilities

Current liabilities amounted to Rs. 567.90 Million as at March 31, 2009 as compared to Rs. 562.22 Million as at March

31, 2008. The following table provides details of significant changes in current liabilities under different heads.

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08

Advance from customers 71.29  3.89

Sundry creditors 140.25  244.21

Unearned revenue  39.52  16.18

Accrued employee liabilities 276.14  201.31

Unpaid dividend 3.59 -

Unpaid tax on dividend 2.44 -

Other liabilities  34.67  96.63

567.90  562.22
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Increase in sundry creditors and other liabilities were in line with the general growth of business. Accrued employee

liabilities comprised outstanding amount towards employee performance bonus, leave travel assistance and

superannuation and increase was mainly due to growth in the number of employees and deferral of bonus payment.

Provisions

Provisions amounted to Rs. 345.83 Million as at March 31, 2009 as compared to Rs. 159.14 Million as at March 31,

2008. Following table provides details of significant changes in provisions under different heads.

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08

Gratuity  2.11 30.43

Leave encashment 103.73 76.79

Provision for long term benefits  61.22 36.19

Provision for fringe benefit tax  2.86  2.54

Provision for derivative contracts 175.91 13.19

345.83 159.14

During the year, the Company recognised additional liability towards long service awards payable to employees on an

actuarial basis in accordance with AS-15. The total liability as on March 31, 2009 is Rs. 61.22 Million.

Provision for derivative contracts relates to mark to market loss recognised on outstanding forward and option contracts

as on March 31, 2009 (Refer note 3H(v) to schedule 15 of notes to accounts).

Income

The Company is engaged in providing Outsourced Product Development Services to the Independent Software Vendors

(ISVs) and Enterprises. The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from export of software services and

products.

During the year, the revenue of the Group increased by 20.90% from USD 105.81 Million to USD 127.84 Million. However,

due to sharp depreciation of INR against USD during the year, the revene in INR recorded 39.77% increase as shown in

the table below.

The business environment was affected due to the crises in the global financial market in the middle of Financial year

2008-09. This has lead to a clients business getting impacted and growth tapering off in the short run.

(In Rs. Million except percentage)

Particulars Financial year Financial year Change %

2008-09 2007-08

Software services and products (Export) 5,752.10 4,155.82 38.41

Software services and products (Domestic) 186.21 92.68 100.92

Total revenue 5,938.31 4,248.50 39.77

Revenue from domestic sources includes revenue derived from India development centres of Multi-National companies

(MNCs) engaged in software product development.

Reimbursement of expenses includes travel and other expenses reimbursed by our customers as per contractual terms.

During the year, share of revenue from North America declined and revenue from Europe and Asia-Pacific increased as

shown in the following table.
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Financial year Financial year

Region 2008-09 2007-08

% %

North-America 87.33 87.62

Europe 8.63 8.70

Asia-Pacific 3.98 3.68

Australia 0.06 -

100 100

Other income

Other Income reflects income from dividend, interest, sale of asset, foreign exchange.

Our Policy allows us to invest in certain low risk, stable investment avenues, which limits our exposure to individual

funds.

The other income decreased to Rs. 68.53 Million during the year, as compared to Rs. 269.39 Million in the previous year

mainly on account of exchange gain in the previous year. The following table shows details of significant changes in

other income under different head.

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08

Income from investment of funds 45.05 26.44

Foreign exchange gain (net) - 221.54

Profit on sale of assets 14.93 1.05

Provision for doubtful debts written back 0.34 14.87

Miscellaneous income 8.11 5.45

Provision for doubtful deposit written back 0.10 -

68.53 269.35

Personnel expenses

Personnel Expenses for the year amounted to Rs. 3,324.25 Million, as compared to Rs. 2,711.45 Million for the previous

year, recording an increased of 22.60% growth. However, as a percentage of total income, these expenses decreased by

4.68% on an overall basis, as shown in the following table.

(In Rs. Million except percentage)

Particulars Financial year Financial year Change %

2008-09 2007-08

Salary and allowances 3,014.09 2,398.67 25.66

Software professional charges 91.93 83.03 10.72

Contribution to provident fund 79.68 62.98 26.52

Gratuity expenses 2.00 27.70 (92.78)

Contribution to other funds 22.32 58.35 (61.75)

Staff welfare and benefits 99.40 74.83 (32.83)

Employee compensation charges 14.83 5.89 151.78

3,324.25 2,711.45 22.60

Percentage of total income 55.34% 60.02%
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Reasons for an increase in personnel expenses are as below:

1. While the headcount of the Group increased from 3,867 to 4,209 during the year, the number of employees

working in the USA decreased from 138 to 107.

2. During the year, salary structure was revised effective April 2008.

3. The Company strengthened its sales and marketing team by including senior personnel in the USA and Europe.

4. Long service benefit cost reduced, due to higher interest rate and consequent change to fair value.

However, relatively speaking, personnel cost, as a percentage of revenue reduced, on account of a rationalization drive,

to address the issue which arose on account of the global size:

1. Salaries where marginally reduced, to enable the Company to control cost.

2. Variable pay was affected, as certain target could not be met.

3. The reduction was progressive in nature, with higher echelons, bearing a higher ratio of reduction.

Operating and other expenses

Operating and other expenses for the year amounted to Rs. 1,700.52 Million as compared to Rs. 637.24 Million in the

previous year recording an overall increase of 166.86%. However, as a percentage of total revenue, the expenses increased

by 14.21% in comparison to the previous year, mainly due to operating leverage arising from volumes growth and

reduction in expenses under some heads as shown in the table below

(In Rs. Million except percentage)

Particulars Financial year Financial year Change %

2008-09 2007-08

Traveling and conveyance 236.14 230.92 2.26

Electricity and fuel 63.61 62.74 1.39

Foreign Exchange Loss 711.24 - N.A.

Software support charges 93.64 26.99 246.94

Provision for doubtful debts including bad debts 112.30 23.39 380.12

Rent 31.86 17.93 77.69

Insurance 11.45 11.89 (3.70)

Rates, fees and professional tax 12.69 18.28 (30.58)

Exchange loss on derivative contracts 162.72 13.19 1133.66

Other expenses 264.87 231.91 14.21

1,700.52 637.24 166.86

Percentage of total income 28.31% 14.10%

Of the above, some expense heads contributing to higher cost are explained below

1. Foreign exchange represents the impact of past forward cover. We hedge through the use of foreign exchange

contract, to mitigate the impact of volatability in the exchange rates. During the year  the sudden change in the

global economic environment, led to a negative impact on such forward covers.

2. Software support charges, represents additional cost of software license maintenance on account of higher manpower

number.

3. Provision for doubtful debts represents an additional provision as per the company policies consequent to the

impact of the global financial crises, which led to delay in payment by client.

Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax (EBIDTA)

During the year, the Company earned an EBIDTA of Rs. 982.07 Million representing 16.00% decreased over EBIDTA of

Rs. 1169.16 Million during the previous year. The EBIDTA margin for the year is 16.35% as compared to 25.88% in the

previous year.

The Company enjoyed debt free status during the year. As a result, there was no interest expense during the year.

Depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year amounted to Rs. 296.77 Million as compared to Rs. 279.99 Million in the previous year

showing an increase of 5.99%. The increase is mainly due to addition of fixed assets amounting to Rs. 456.59 Million

during the year.
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Depreciation as percentage to total income declined to 4.94% in the current year as compared to 6.20 % in the previous

year. The Company follows the straight-line method (SLM) of depreciation. Depreciation rates followed by the Company

are based on the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the Management and are higher than the rates prescribed in

the Schedule IV of the Companies Act as shown in the table below

Asset Depreciation rates Depreciation

followed by the rates as per

Company Schedule XIV

Computers 33.33% 16.21%

Software 33.33% 16.21%

Electrical installations and other equipments 20% 4.75%

Air conditioners 20% 4.75%

Furniture and fixtures 20% 6.33%

Vehicles 20% 9.50%

Building 4% 1.63%

Provision for tax

Tax expense comprised current tax, deferred tax and fringe benefit tax.

The Company is entitled to tax holiday under Section 10A of Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of its software development

centers registered under the Software Technology Park of India (STPI) Scheme. A substantial portion of the profits of the

Company is, therefore exempt from Income tax.

With effect from April 1, 2007, the Company was exposed to the Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) on its book profits as

per provisions of section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961. However the Company is entitled to claim set-off against

future tax liability of an amount equal to excess of MAT paid over actual income-tax liability for the year.

The provision for tax for the year amounted to Rs. 64.94 Million including provision for tax of Rs. 0.19 Million for prior

period tax. However, the MAT credit available against future tax liability amounted to Rs. 43.00 Million. The net income

tax liability for the year amounted to Rs. 22.13 Million as against Rs. 9.26 Million for the previous year. The deferred tax

credit for the year was Rs. 23.02 Million as against deferred tax charge of Rs. 1.99 Million for the previous year.

The Company made a provision of Rs. 10.54 Million during the year as compared to Rs. 11.0 Million during the previous

year towards Fringe Benefit Tax (FBT) payable on the value of benefits provided and/or deemed to have been provided to

its employees.

Total tax expense for the year amounted to Rs. 9.65 Million as compared to Rs. 22.25 Million for the previous year. As a

proportion of total income, tax expense for the year declined to 0.16% from 0.49% for the previous year.

Net profit after tax and before exceptional and prior period items

The net profit after tax and before exceptional and prior period items for the year amounted to Rs. 675.65 Million as

compared to the net profit of Rs. 866.92 Million for the previous year recording decline of 22.06%. The net profit margin

for the year was at 11.25% as compared to 19.19% in the previous year. The decrease in net profit margin of 7.94% is on

account of the effective foreign exchange loss, incurred due to the sudden depreciation of the Rupee against the US

Dollars, consequent to the global financial crises.

Exceptional and prior period items

The Company deferred its Initial Public Offer (IPO), which was planned during the year, due to adverse market sentiments

which was a result of the unprecedented crisis in the world’s financial markets. As a result, the Company decided to

write-off expenses of Rs. 14.73 Million incurred for the purpose of share issue.

Net profit after exceptional and prior period items

The Company’s net profit after tax, exceptional and prior period items decreased to Rs. 660.92 Million in the year from

Rs. 831.74 Million in the previous year recording decline of 20.54%. The net profit margin as a percentage of total

income was 11.00% in the year as compared to 18.41 % in the previous year.

Dividend

During the year, the Company paid two interim dividends amounting to Rs. 35.86 Million as against Rs. 43.03 Million in

the previous year. Dividend distribution tax paid on interim dividend during the year amounted to Rs. 6.09 Million as

compared to Rs. 7.31 Million during the previous year.
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Objective

The objective of the Company’s Risk Management Policy is to help the Company identify present and potential risks faced

by it and to optimise its risk management strategies. This helps the Company in identification, assessment, measurement,

monitoring, mitigation and reporting of all risks associated with the activities conducted by the Company.

Structure

The Operating Management of the Company has the primary responsibility to operate the Company in a manner consistent

within the parameters set by the Board of Directors. Operating Management utilises both, formal and informal monitoring

tools. Formal risk management processes include management level committees, policies and functional meetings.

The Operating Management reports to the Board through the Audit committee, in relation to Risk Management processes.

Risk Management process

Risk Management is a continuous interplay of actions towards identifying emerging risks and provide mitigation solutions

across the Company. Risk Management perceptions are dynamic, evolving with business conditions, which are constantly

changing. The risk management process of the Company aims at providing reasonable assurance regarding achievement

of the Company’s objectives, by enabling appropriate measures to mitigate risks.

The Company’s Risk Management process endeavours to

1 Identify, assess and escalate new risks impacting the objectives of the Company;

2. Define measures to respond to the new risks effectively;

3. Monitor movement (if any) in the existing risks;

4. Assess existing risk management measures; and

5. Report risks and risk management measures to the Board of Directors on a periodic basis.

Risk identification

The risks which are critical to the Company’s business are grouped into following categories

Business model Financial risks Operational risks Legal risks

related risks

Geographical Foreign currency Technology obsolescence Information security

concentration risk fluctuations

Segment concentration Collection from debtors Planning risk Intellectual property

(client default risk) protection

Competitive environment Changes in accounting Business continuity and Contractual compliance

rules and taxation laws disaster recovery

Lack of visibility of business Immigration laws

1. Risks related to the business model

A. Geographical concentration

As a large proportion of the Company’s clients are located in USA, a significant proportion of the Company’s revenue is

derived from USA. This geographic concentration exposes the Company to macro-economic and political risks related to

USA.

The Company is concentrating on business opportunities from new geographical areas like Canada, The Netherlands and

Singapore. The Company is also exploring the Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) region and has built regional sales

teams to focus on business from these geographies.

Report on Risk Management
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The following table shows the geographical break-up of revenue of the last three years

Region Financial year Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

North America 87.27% 87.62% 92.30%

Europe 8.64% 8.70% 6.35%

Asia-Pacific 4.09% 3.68% 1.35%

100% 100% 100%

B. Segment concentration

The Company is predominantly engaged in providing Outsourced Product Development services to the Independent Software

Vendors (ISVs) and Enterprises. Therefore, a large proportion of the Company’s business is derived from the ISV segment.

High dependence on a single business segment exposes the Company to the business cycles and risks inherent to that

segment.

The Company has re-organised its business units with a view to increase focus on new domains and enhanced service

offerings to enterprise customers. The Company is also planning to acquire a breadth of competencies using various

strategic options.

The following table shows share of revenue from different business units during the last three years

Segment Financial year Financial year Financial year

2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

ISVs 49.49% 51.20% 59.13%

Telecom 20.90% 25.57% 27.42%

Enterprise & others 29.61% 23.23% 13.45%

100% 100% 100%

C. Competitive environment

The Company faces competition from Indian software companies, captive development centers of Multi-National Companies

and software companies from emerging regions such as China, Russia and East Europe.

The Company tracks competing enterprises on a regular and systematic basis. The Company has also taken measures for

promoting client loyalty by delivering value for money, conducting regular client satisfaction surveys and enhancing brand

awareness through marketing initiatives. The Company has hired senior sales personnel with experience and networks in

the target segments. The sales organisation has also been restructured and staffed to pay special attention to large and

non-linear deals.

The Company has also set up an Advisory Council consisting senior and influential business people who can help the

Company to explore and address large opportunities.

D. Lack of visibility of business

Our customers may face uncertainty, due the current global economic slowdown. This could have a cascading impact on

our growth plans.

Our strong relationships with our clients and experience in providing end-to-end solutions and services will encourage our

clients in partnering their growth with us and in the process give us greater visibility to their future direction. The Company

is also investing in new technologies / offerings, which will expand our capability to address a wider set of client needs and

hence expand our client base.
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2. Financial risks

A. Foreign currency fluctuations

A substantial proportion of the Company’s revenue is in US Dollars, whereas, a large part of its expenditure is incurred in

Indian Rupees. The Company is, therefore, exposed to the risk of adverse changes in exchange rate between US Dollar and

Indian Rupee.

The Company has taken the following measures to mitigate the currency risk

i. The Company has adopted a policy to hedge its cash flow from exports in a systematic manner, using a defined set

of rules and using plain vanilla instruments.

ii. The approach to managing foreign exchange risk, is to limit the impact of adverse movements in the foreign exchange

markets, while retaining some part of the opportunity.

iii. This is done through a defined stop-loss mechanism as well as defined net open positions mechanism.

iv. The Company also constantly reviews revenue flows through internal meetings.

v. There is great focus on collections, leading to improved estimation of flows.

B. Collection from debtors (client default risk)

This risk is the possible inability to collect from client or delays in collection of the Company’s dues. This may occur due to

reasons, such as adverse impact of the economic situation on clients, lack of bank finance due to de-leveraging, or clients

business being under stress.

The Company is focused on constant follow-up and feedback to the sales and delivery teams on the outstanding positions.

The Company has also aligned individual incentives with collection focus. In addition, clients are reviewed for

credit-worthiness at the inception of contracts, to define the level of credit that should be allowed to clients.

C. Changes in accounting rules and taxation laws

Accounting rules and fiscal laws are undergoing a change. We are moving towards new Accounting paradigms and

Accounting Standards are getting amended. Similarly, fiscal laws are also undergoing structural changes and this could

lead to a change in the tax related benefits that the Company may have enjoyed.

Such changes could lead to an adverse impact on the way financials are reported and in case of inadequate appreciaton of

such changes, can adversely affect reported financial figures.

Changes in fiscal laws could lead to the loss of benefits and lead to a higher tax outgo.

The Company has invested in systems to ensure a review and analysis of latest changes in both accounting pronouncements

and changes in taxation. The Operating Management reviews such changes with the Audit Committee and the Board, with

the intention of addressing changes appropriately and efficiently.

3. Operational risks

A. Technology obsolescence

The Company operates in the area of advanced technology domains which are subject to continuous innovations. Hence,

the Company is vulnerable to risk of technology obsolescence.

The Company has set up a center of excellence which tracks new technologies relevant to the Company’s business. The

Company makes significant investments in state of art technologies and tools for software development, testing and

quality analysis.
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B. Planning risk

There is a possibility of inaccuracy in planning for project execution or difficulty in planning for resource requirements with

changing business needs. This can be because of creating capacity (staff & infrastructure) too far in advance of business

growth or setting targets too aggressively.

The Company sets top down targets in the context of bottom up forecasts from account managers. Operational plans are

modified in line with monthly and quarterly tracking of existing and new business achievement against the targets set. The

Company proposes to innovate and devise new ways of keeping costs in line with the business growth such as relying

more on rented facilities and contract workers to provide for short term business variations, linking employee compensation

with project allocation, etc.

C. Business continuity and disaster recovery

The possibility that valuable assets could be damaged due to natural disasters like earthquakes, cyclones or man-made

disasters like a terrorist strike.

The Company has implemented strong systems and processes for physical and network security, back-ups of data across

different locations and disaster recovery as a part of the framework provided by BS ISO/IEC 27001:2005.

4. Legal risks

A. Information security

The risk of issues like loss of client data confidentiality, chances of IP contamination, possibility of use of illegal code, access

to customer servers leading to misuse / loss of confidential data and loss of critical data due to inadequate backup

mechanism.

The Company has strict policies and control mechanisms in place to tackle these problems. A process of classification of

confidential data is in existence and appropriate baseline control processes for storage are in place like usage of repositories,

restrictions on sharing, etc. Mobile computing devices are provided to restricted people with appropriate education for

usage and a process of awareness creation is in place regarding security of mobile computing devices like Laptops. External

storage devices are strictly prohibited in the Company. Data backup infrastructure has been refreshed and upgraded

during the financial year 2008-09 at all locations.

B. Intellectual property protection

Information security and protection of Intellectual Property (IP) assume vital significance in the Company’s business.

Information security covers a wide range of computer and physical security issues, social engineering attacks and privacy

concerns.

The Company has adopted the framework provided by BS ISO/IEC 27001:2005 and BS ISO/IEC 17799:2005 for building

information security into normal business processes and has been awarded certification by DNV for successful implementation

of those standards.

C. Contractual compliance

Product development companies are exposed to legal risks which could arise from violation of intellectual property rights,

leakage of confidentiality information and non-performance of the contractual obligations.

The Company has established a strong process for legal review of all contracts and documentation. As a matter of policy,

the Company does not accept any open ended liability for non-performance of contracts. The Company has taken a

comprehensive insurance policy to cover possible risks arising from errors and omissions and commercial general liability.

D. Immigration laws

The Company’s business requires deputation of employees on overseas assignments which require appropriate visas to

work in foreign countries. Any restrictions imposed on visas by foreign countries, especially by USA, may have adverse

impact on the business of the Company.

Due to an offshore-centric delivery model, the Company has limited exposure to risks related to visa restrictions in foreign

jurisdictions. The Company avails advice of reputed legal counsels and immigration experts to track changes and ensure

compliances in visa / immigration related matters.
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To

The Members of Persistent Systems Limited

1. We S.R. Batliboi & Co. Chartered Accountants (“SRB”) and Joshi Apte & Co. (“JACO”) Chartered Accountants

(collectively referred to as “Joint Auditors”) have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Persistent Systems

Limited (the Company) as at March 31, 2009 and also the profit and loss account and the cash flow statement for

the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears

from our examination of those books;

iii. The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement

with the books of account;

iv. In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report

comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies

Act, 1956; and

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2009, and taken on

record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2009

from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies

Act, 1956.

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said

accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a. in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2009;

b. in the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c. in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi

Partner Partner

Membership No.: 30428 Membership No.: 89802

Place : Pune Place : Pune

Date : June 23, 2009 Date : June 23, 2009
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date

Re : Persistent Systems Limited

i a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

b. Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no   material discrepancies

were identified on such verification.

c. There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets during the year.

ii The Company does not hold any inventory and accordingly sub clauses (a), (b) and (c) to clause (ii) of the Companies

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

iii a. As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, sub

clauses (b), (c), and (d) of clause 4(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

e. As informed, the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, sub

clauses (f) and (g) of clause 4(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control

system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed assets

and software services. The activities of the Company did not involve purchase of inventory or sale of goods. During

the course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal control system in respect of these

areas.

v Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations provided by

management, we are of the opinion that there are no transactions that need to be entered into the register

maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly clause 4(v) (b) of the Companies (Auditor’s

Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) is not applicable to the Company.

vi The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vii In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

viii To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost

records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the services and software

products of the Company.

ix a. The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including

provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,

wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax,

service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding,

at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c. According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service

tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows

Name of Nature Amount Period to Forum

the statute of dues (Rs.) which the where dispute

amount relates is pending

Finance Act, 1994 Annual 1,949,466 Financial Year The Superintendent of

(Chapter V) Maintenance ended 2007-08 Central Excise

Contracts (Service Tax Cell)

Employees State Company’s 4,928,840 Financial Year Sub-Regional Office,

Insurance Corporation Contribution 2000-01 Pune



76

Nineteenth Annual Report 2008-2009

x The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the

current and immediately preceding financial year.

xi The Company has not taken any borrowings from banks, financial institutions and has not issued debentures

during the year and accordingly, we are not required to comment on default if any, on repayment of borrowings.

xii According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to

us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures

and other securities.

xiii In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions

of clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

xiv In respect of dealing / trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments,  in our opinion and according

to the information and explanations given to us, proper records have been maintained of the transactions and

contracts and timely entries have been made therein. The shares, securities, debentures and other investments

have been held by the Company, in its own name.

xv According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans

taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

xvi The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

xvii According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of

the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

xviii The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register

maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

xix The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

xx The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.

xxi Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial

statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or

by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi

Partner Partner

Membership No. : 30428 Membership No. : 89802

Place : Pune Place : Pune

Date : June 23, 2009 Date : June 23, 2009
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2009

Sch. As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Sources of funds

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 1  358.61  358.61

Stock options outstanding (Refer note 14 to schedule 15)  20.73  5.89

Reserves and surplus 2  3,567.43  3,023.34

3,946.77  3,387.84

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (Refer note 10 to schedule 15) -  2.55

3,946.77  3,390.39

Application of funds

Fixed assets 3

Gross block 3,336.67  2,901.49

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortisation  1,543.54  1,260.61

Net block  1,793.13  1,640.88

Capital work-in-progress including capital advances  377.44  330.75

 2,170.57  1,971.63

Investments 4  1,067.01  859.95

Deferred tax assets (net) (Refer note 10 to schedule 15)  16.39  -

Current assets, loans and advances

Sundry debtors 5  824.19  624.90

Cash and bank balances 6  68.93  60.85

Other current assets 7  117.19  76.07

Loans and advances 8  496.10  406.46

(A)  1,506.41 1,168.28

Less Current liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities 9  484.78  460.63

Provisions 10  328.83 148.84

(B)  813.61 609.47

Net current assets (A - B)  692.80  558.81

 3,946.77  3,390.39

Notes to accounts 15

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S.P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009

(In Rs. Million)
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Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2009

Income

Sale of software services and products 11  5,196.91  3,828.77

Other Income 12  73.77  270.10

 5,270.68  4,098.87

Expenditure

Personnel expenses 13  2,795.76  2,353.94

Operating and other expenses 14  1,567.87  572.66

4,363.63  2,926.60

Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation  907.05  1,172.27

Depreciation and amortisation 3  294.72  277.97

Profit before tax and exceptional items  612.33  894.30

Provision for tax

Current tax  63.00  98.45

Less MAT credit entitlement  43.00  89.44

Net current tax  20.00  9.01

Deferred tax charge / (credit)  (18.94)  1.99

Fringe benefit tax  10.50  11.00

Total tax expense  11.56  22.00

Profit after tax and before exceptional items  600.77  872.30

Exceptional items (Refer note 12 to schedule 15)  (14.73)  (35.18)

Profit after tax and exceptional items  586.04  837.12

Balance brought forward from previous year  1,471.02  1,019.14

Profit available for appropriation  2,057.06  1,856.26

Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve  234.40  334.90

Interim dividend on equity shares  35.86  43.03

Tax on interim dividend on equity shares  6.09  7.31

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet  1,780.71  1,471.02

Earnings per share (Refer note 9 to schedule 15)

Basic [Nominal value of equity shares Rs. 10 (Previous year Rs. 10)]

Computed on the basis of earnings including exceptional items  18.34  29.30

Computed on the basis of earnings excluding exceptional items  18.80  30.53

Diluted [Nominal value of equity shares Rs. 10 (Previous year Rs. 10)]

Computed on the basis of earnings including exceptional items  16.34  23.34

Computed on the basis of earnings excluding exceptional items  16.75  24.33

Notes to accounts  1 5

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009

(In Rs. Million)

Sch. For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2009 31, 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet

Schedule 1

Share capital

Authorised

100,000,000 (Previous year 100,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,000.00  1,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

35,861,000 (Previous year 35,861,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

fully paid.

(Of the above 25,615,000 equity shares were allotted as fully paid up

bonus shares by capitalisation of capital redemption reserves and

securities premium account) 358.61  358.61

358.61  358.61

Schedule 2

Reserves and surplus

Capital redemption reserve

Opening balance -  9.79

Less Utilised for the issue of bonus shares -  (9.79)

Closing balance (A) -  -

Securities premium account

Opening balance 577.49  829.96

Add Additions during the year -  0.31

Less Share issue expenses -  (6.42)

Less Utilised for the issue of bonus shares -  (246.36)

Closing balance (B) 577.49  577.49

General reserve

Opening balance 974.83  639.93

Add Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 234.40  334.90

Closing balance (C) 1,209.23  974.83

Profit and Loss Account (D) 1,780.71  1,471.02

(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)  3,567.43 3,023.34

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedule forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Schedule 4

Investments

Long term investments (At cost)

Trade (Unquoted)

In Subsidiary companies

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

920,300 (Previous year 920,300) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each,

fully paid up  42.28  42.28

Less Provision for diminution in value of investment 42.28  42.28

(A)  -  -

Persistent Systems, Inc.

37,000,000 (Previous year 37,000,000) Shares of USD 0.10 each,

fully paid up  165.92  165.92

(B)  165.92  165.92

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited

500,000 (Previous year 100,000) Shares of SGD 1 each,

fully paid up  15.50  2.68

(C)  15.50  2.68

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited

1,450,000 (Previous year NIL) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 14.50  -

(D)  14.50  -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (E)=(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)  195.92  168.60

Current Investments (At lower of cost and market value)

Other than trade (Unquoted)

Investment in mutual funds (unquoted)*

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments market value

Rs. 871.09 Million (Previous year Rs. 692.38 Million) 871.09  691.35

(F)  871.09  691.35

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (E)+(F)  1,067.01  859.95

* Refer note 17 to schedule 15 for details of investments

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Schedule 5

Sundry debtors

(Unsecured unless otherwise stated)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

Considered good  -  -

Considered doubtful  98.96  26.45

Other debts

Considered good  824.19  624.90

Considered doubtful  18.39  3.43

 941.54  654.78

Less Provision for doubtful debts  117.35  29.88

 824.19  624.90

Included in sundry debtors are dues from companies under the

same management as follows

Persistent Systems, Inc.

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 52.97 Million

(Previous year Rs. 60.66 Million)] 15.19  -

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 34.62 Million

(Previous year Rs. 4.24 Million)] 29.01  4.24

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 1.01 Million

(Previous year Rs. NIL)] 0.90  -

Schedule 6

Cash and bank balances

Cash on hand  0.13  0.12

Balances with scheduled banks

On current accounts  58.73  56.40

On deposit accounts  2.14  4.04

60.87  60.44

Balances with other banks

On current accounts  7.28  -

On saving account  0.65  0.29

 7.93  0.29

 68.93  60.85

Bank balances with others include

Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi- NS, Japan

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 1.09 Million

(Previous year Rs. 1.93 Million)]  0.65  0.29

Citibank Canada

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 7.28 Million

(Previous year Rs. NIL)] 7.28  -

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Schedule 7

Other current assets

Accrued income  0.14  0.12

Unbilled revenue  115.84  75.95

Fixed assets held for sale (at net book value or estimated net

realisable value whichever is lower)  1.21  -

 117.19  76.07

Schedule 8

Loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to companies under the same management  0.83  8.38

(A)  0.83  8.38

Loan to companies under same management 60.57 -

(B) 60.57 -

Advance to PSPL ESOP Management Trust  153.83  158.33

Advance Income Tax [Net of provision of Rs. 190.58 Million

(Previous year Rs. 127.58 Million)]  27.34  4.71

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received  41.05  102.63

VAT and Service tax receivable [Net of provision Rs. 12.66 Million

(Previous year Rs. 6.60 Million)]  56.33  21.70

MAT credit entitlement  132.44  89.44

Deposits  23.71  21.27

(C)  434.70  398.08

Unsecured considered doubtful

Deposits  2.68  2.78

Less Provision for non recoverable deposit  2.68  2.78

(D)  -  -

Loan to companies under same management  25.53  25.53

Less Provision for non recoverable loan  25.53  25.53

(E)  -  -

(A)+(B)+(C )+(D)+(E)  496.10  406.46

Included in advances are

Dues from companies under the same management

Persistent Systems, Inc.

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 31.98 Million

(Previous year Rs. 9.30 Million)]  0.83  7.86

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. NIL

(Previous year Rs. 2.74 Million)] -  0.18

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. NIL

(Previous year Rs. 1.70 Million)]  -  0.34

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Schedule 8 Loans and advances (Contd.)

Included in loans are

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 25.53 Million

(Previous year Rs. 25.53 Million)] 25.53  25.53

Persistent Systems, Inc.

[Maximum amount outstanding during the period Rs. 61.18 Million

(Previous year Rs. NIL)]  60.57  -

Schedule 9

Current liabilities

Advance from customers  65.73  3.89

Sundry creditors

Micro, Small and Medium enterprises (Refer note 19 to schedule 15)  -  -

Others  126.54  230.23

Subsidiary companies  25.95  8.40

Unearned revenue  28.24  15.21

Accrued employee liabilities  200.35  145.18

Unpaid dividend  3.59  -

Unpaid tax on dividend  2.44  -

Other liabilities  31.94  57.72

 484.78  460.63

Dues to companies under the same management

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 6.81 Million

(Previous year Rs. NIL] 1.10  -

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 0.50 Million

(Previous year Rs. NIL)]  0.22  -

Persistent Systems, Inc.

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 52.16 Million

(Previous year Rs. 45.93 Million)]  24.63  8.40

Schedule 10

Provisions

Gratuity [Refer note 6 to schedule 15]  1.93  30.37

Leave encashment  87.24  66.54

Provision for other long term benefits  60.90  36.19

Provision for derivative contracts (Refer note 2H(v) to schedule 15)  175.91  13.19

Provision for fringe benefit tax [Net of advance tax Rs. 31.69 Million

(Previous year Rs. 21.49 Million)]  2.85  2.55

 328.83  148.84

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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Schedules forming part of Profit & Loss Account

(In Rs. Million)

For the year For the year

ended ended

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Schedule 11

Sale of software services and products

Overseas  5,026.33  3,754.94

Domestic 170.58  73.83

5,196.91  3,828.77

Schedule 12

Other Income

Interest on bank deposits [Tax deducted at source Rs. 0.03 Million

(Previous year Rs. 0.04 Million)] 0.16  0.21

Interest on inter corporate deposit and others

[Tax deducted at source Rs. 1.25 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.38 Million)]  6.42  2.21

Foreign exchange gains (net)  -  220.83

Profit on sale of assets (net) 14.92  1.03

Dividend from non-trade investments  43.81  25.43

Profit on sale of investments (net) 0.37  0.18

Provision for doubtful debts written back  -  14.87

Provision for doubtful deposit written back 0.10  -

Miscellaneous income  7.99  5.34

 73.77  270.10

Schedule 13

Personnel expenses

Salary and allowances  2,323.67  1,963.26

Staff welfare and benefits  91.36  69.72

Contribution to provident fund  79.16  62.95

Defined Contribution to other funds  22.27  22.16

Gratuity [Refer note 6 to Schedule 15]  1.87  27.66

Software professional charges  262.60  202.30

Employee compensation expenses  14.83  5.89

2,795.76  2,353.94
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Schedule forming part of Profit & Loss Account (Contd.)

Schedule 14

Operating and other expenses

Traveling and conveyance 175.81  185.63

Electricity and fuel  62.56  62.64

Internet link charges  28.26  23.24

Communication charges 18.58  18.63

Recruitment expenses 23.81  35.19

Training and seminars  18.49  23.64

Software support charges 90.18  23.98

Provision for doubtful debts 87.47  15.24

Rent (Refer note 11 to schedule 15) 11.45  9.16

Insurance  11.24  11.68

Rates, fees and profession tax  10.35  18.06

Legal and professional fees 11.19  13.67

Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery 16.50  13.26

Building 6.11  6.73

Others 9.20  7.45

Commission on sales to other than sole selling agents  37.80  35.51

Advertisements, sponsorship fees 6.78  3.11

Computer consumables  5.18  7.15

Auditors’ remuneration (Refer note 15.2 to schedule 15) 3.68  3.27

Donations 15.43  1.61

Books, memberships, subscriptions  1.36  2.05

Foreign exchange loss (net) 717.46  -

Exchange loss on derivative contracts (Refer note 2H(v) to schedule 15) 162.72  13.19

Directors’ sitting fees 0.27  0.17

Directors’ commission 0.90  1.69

Provision for doubtful deposit -  2.78

Miscellaneous expenses  35.09  33.93

 1,567.87  572.66

(In Rs. Million)

For the year For the year

ended ended

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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Notes to Accounts

Schedule 15

1. Nature of operations

Persistent Systems Limited (the “Company”) is predominantly engaged in Outsourced Product Development services for

Independent Software Vendors (“ISVs”) and Enterprises. The Company offers complete product life cycle services from end

to end.

2. Statement of significant accounting policies

A. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified accounting standard by

Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These financial

statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been

consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

B. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent

liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting

period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual

results could differ from these estimates.

C. Fixed assets and intangibles

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase

price and any attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended

use, are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of fixed assets that are not ready or put to use and advances paid to construct or

acquire fixed assets.

Cost relating to software licenses, of enduring nature are capitalised on acquisition and amortised over their estimated

useful lives.

D. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the

management, or at the rates prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, whichever is higher.

Software licenses of enduring nature are amortised over a period of three years or over their estimated useful lives whichever

is lower.

Depreciation on assets purchased / sold during the year is charged on a pro-rata basis. Individual assets whose cost does

not exceed Rs. 5,000 are depreciated at 100%.

A comparative statement of rates of depreciation followed by the Company and applicable rates as per the schedule XIV of

the Companies Act is as below

Assets Rates (SLM) Rates as per Schedule XIV (SLM)

Computers 33.33% 16.21%

Plant and machinery 20.00% 4.75%

Furniture and fixtures 20.00% 6.33%

Vehicles 20.00% 9.50%

Buildings 4.00% 1.63%
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E. Impairment

i. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based

on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average

cost of capital.

ii. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

F. Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for a period not more than a year are classified as current

investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term

investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline, other than

temporary decline, in the value of the investments.

G. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can

be reliably measured.

i. Income from software services

Revenue from time and material engagements is recognised on time basis in accordance with the terms of the

contracts.

In case of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the milestones achieved as specified in the contracts,

on the proportionate completion basis.

Revenue from licensing of products is recognised on delivery of products.

Revenue from royalty is recognised on sale of products in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Revenue from maintenance contracts are recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the contract as and when

services are rendered.

Unbilled revenue represents revenue recognised in relation to work done on time and material projects and fixed

price projects until the balance sheet date for which billing has not taken place.

Unearned revenue represents the billing in respect of contracts for which the revenue is not recognised as per the

terms of contract.

ii. Interest

Revenue from interest is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the

rate applicable.

iii. Dividends

Revenue from dividend is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment is established by the balance

sheet date. Dividend from subsidiaries is recognised even if such dividend is declared after the balance sheet date but

pertains to period on or before the date of Balance Sheet as per the requirement of Schedule VI of the Companies

Act, 1956.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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H. Foreign currency translations

i. Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the

exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

ii. Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms

of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency

are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

iii. Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at

rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial

statements, are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences from the accounting period commencing on or after April 1, 2007 in respect of fixed assets

acquired, including foreign currency liabilities relating thereto, are recognised as income or expenses in the period in

which they arise.

iv. Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes covered by AS 11

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortised as expense or income

over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss in the period in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward

exchange contract is recognised as income or as expense for the year.

v. Options and forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes, classified as derivative

instruments

Pursuant to the announcement made by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) regarding “Accounting

for Derivatives”, options and forward exchange contracts, not covered by (iv) above are classified as derivatives and

are marked to market on a portfolio basis at the balance sheet date. The resultant net losses after considering the

offsetting effect on the underlying hedge items are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account on the principle of

prudence. The resultant net gains, if any, on such derivatives are not recognised in financial statements. Any profit or

loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is recognised as income or expense for the

year.

I. Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Gratuity

Gratuity liability represents defined benefit obligation and is provided for based on actuarial valuations, by using the

Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, made at the end of each financial year for employees covered under Group

Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

ii. Superannuation

Superannuation is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The contribution to the superannuation

fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the

eligible employees as per the scheme. The contribution to this scheme is charged to the Profit and Loss Account on

an accrual basis. There are no other contributions payable other than contribution payable to the respective fund.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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iii. Provident fund

Provident fund is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The Company and the eligible employees

make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner equal

to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the eligible employees as per the scheme. The employer’s contribution

is charged to the Profit and Loss Account on an accrual basis. There are no other contributions payable other than

contribution payable to the respective fund.

iv. Leave encashment

The short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are

provided for based on actuarial valuation by using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method.

v. Long service awards

Long service awards are other long term benefits to all eligible employees, as per Company’s policy are provided

based on actuarial valuation. Actuarial valuations are made as per the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method.

vi. Actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial gains/ losses are immediately taken to Profit and Loss Account and are not deferred.

J. Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax. Current income tax and fringe benefit tax is measured at

the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. Deferred income taxes

reflect the impact of current year’s timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and

reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet

date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has

unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty

supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities relating to the timing differences arising and reversing during the tax holiday period under

Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961, are not recognised.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred

tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future

taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the

carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case

may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such

write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that

sufficient future taxable income will be available.

The Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence

that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the period in which the MAT credit becomes

eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and

shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the

carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company

will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)



92

Nineteenth Annual Report 2008-2009

K. Segment reporting policies

In accordance with paragraph 4 of Notified Accounting Standard 17 (AS-17) “Segment Reporting” the Company has

disclosed segment information only on the basis of the consolidated financial statements which shall be presented together

with the unconsolidated financial statements.

L. Earnings per share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining EPS comprise the amount attributable to Equity Shareholders. The number of

shares used in computing the basic earning per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

period as reduced by the shares held by PSPL ESOP Management Trust at the balance sheet date, which are obtained by

PSPL ESOP Management Trust from finance provided by the Company.

The weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the previous year was adjusted for events of bonus issue.

The number of shares used in computing the diluted earning per share comprises the weighted average number of share

considered for deriving basic earning per share, and also the weighted average number of shares, if any issued on the

conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares. The number of weighted average shares outstanding during the year and

potentially dilutive Equity Shares are adjusted for the issued bonus shares and sub-division of shares.

For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, the net profit for the year attributable to the Equity Shareholders and the

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential Equity

Shares.

M. Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions

are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at

the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an

original maturity period of three months or less.

O. Employee stock compensation cost

Measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with the Guidance Note

on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Company measures compensation cost relating to employee stock options using the intrinsic value method.

Compensation expense is amortised over the vesting period of the option on a straight line basis if the fair market value of

the underlying stock exceeds the exercised price at the measurement date, which typically is the grant date.

P. Leases

Where the Company is a lessee, assets acquired as leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership

are retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

3. Securities for loans

The export packing credit is secured by hypothecation of present and future receivables of the Company on pari passu

basis with Bank of India and Citibank N.A. There is no balance payable as at March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008.
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4. Contingent liabilities not provided for (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009  2008

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Legal Claims filed by the ex employee for salary and other benefits 0.29 0.29

ESI 4.92 4.92

5.21 5.21

The Company has received a demand notice dated December 31, 2008, u/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, for the assessment

year 2005-06 for Rs. 2.57 Million. The Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals – II), as per the order dated November

11, 2008, has passed an order granting relief of Rs. 2.61 Million for the assessment year 2003-04.

5. Capital commitments (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009  2008

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be

executed on capital account and not provided for 366.97 349.37

6. Gratuity and other employment benefit plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a

gratuity on departure at 15 days basic salary (last drawn basic salary) subject to a maximum of 30 days basic salary (last

drawn basic salary) as per the rules of the Company for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an

insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and the

funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Profit and Loss Account

Net employee (benefit) / expense (recognised in Employee cost) (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Current service cost 28.24 28.07 17.61

Interest cost on benefit obligation 6.51 4.05 2.58

Expected return on plan assets (5.63) (4.37) (2.43)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (27.25) 7.17 3.29

Interest income - (4.40) -

Net (benefit) / expense 1.87 30.52 21.05

Actual Return on Net Plan Assets - - -

Changes in the fair value of plan assets (recognised in the Balance Sheet) are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Opening fair value of plan assets 53.88 29.09 31.56

Expected return / adjustment 5.63 4.37 2.43

Contribution by employer 30.18 20.35 0.04

Benefits paid (5.52) (2.79) (2.51)

Actuarial gains / (losses) 1.85 2.86 (2.43)

Closing fair value of plan assets 86.02 53.88 29.09
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation (recognised in Balance Sheet) are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Opening defined benefit obligation 84.13 52.00 33.46

Interest cost 6.51 4.05 2.58

Current service cost 28.24 28.07 17.61

Benefits paid (5.52) (2.79) (2.51)

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (25.41) 2.80 0.86

Closing defined benefit obligation 87.95 84.13 52.00

Summary statement of provision for gratuity is as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Fair value of plan assets 86.02 53.88 29.09

Defined benefit obligations (87.95) (84.13) (52.00)

Unrecognised past service cost - - -

Plan asset / (liability) (1.93) (30.25) (22.91)

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 1.93 Million to gratuity fund in financial year 2009-10.

The Company maintains gratuity fund, which is being administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Investments with insurer including accrued interest 86.02 53.88 29.09

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable

to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Discount rate 7.79% 8.00% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 8.50% 9.00% 8.00%

Amounts for the current and previous years are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Plan assets 86.02 53.88 29.09

Defined benefit obligation (87.95) (84.13) (52.00)

Surplus / (deficit) (1.93) (30.25) (22.91)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (25.41) 2.80 0.86

Experience adjustments on plan assets 1.85 2.86 (2.43)
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7. Derivative Instruments and Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

Forward exchange and option contracts outstanding at the balance sheet date (In USD Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009  2008

Sales 87.32 136.85

Purchase - -

Particulars of Un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date

Particulars March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Balance with Bank of Tokyo - Rs. 0.65 Million (JPY 1.26 Million Rs. 0.29 Million (JPY 0.73 Million

Mitsubishi-NS (Japan) @ closing rate of JPY 1 = Re. 0.5147) @ closing rate of JPY 1 = Re. 0.399)

Balance with Rs. 0.51 Million (USD 0.01 Million Rs. 0.40 Million (USD 0.01 Million

Bank of India (USA) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 50.70) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 40.11)

Balance with Rs. 0.68 Million (GBP 0.01 Million Rs. 0.21 Million (GBP 0.002 Million

Bank of India (UK) @ closing rate of GBP 1 = Rs. 72.51) @ closing rate of GBP 1 = Rs. 79.58)

Balance with Rs. 7.28 Million (CAD 0.18 Million -

Citibank (Canada) @ closing rate of CAD 1 = Rs. 40.45)

Investment in Rs. 187.59 Million (USD 3.70 Million Rs. 148.41 Million (USD 3.70 Million

Persistent Systems, Inc. @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 50.70) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 40.11)

Investment in Rs. 16.68 Million (SGD 0.50 Million Rs. 2.91 Million (SGD 0.10 Million

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited @ closing rate of SGD 1 = Rs. 33.36) @ closing rate of SGD 1 = Rs. 29.06)

Payable to Rs. 24.63 Million (USD 0.49 Million Rs. 8.40 Million (USD 0.21 Million

Persistent Systems, Inc. @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 50.72) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 40.11)

Inter corporate deposit to Rs. 60.57 Million (USD 1.19 Million -

Persistent Systems, Inc. @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 50.70)

Advance to Rs. 0.83 Million (USD 0.02 Million Rs. 7.86 Million (USD 0.20 Million

Persistent Systems, Inc. @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 50.70) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 40.10)

Advance to - Rs. 0.34 Million (SGD 0.01 Million

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited @ closing rate of SGD 1 = Rs. 29.06)

8. Investment in subsidiary

During the year ended March 31, 2009 the Company has invested Rs. 14.50 Million in Persistent Systems and Solutions

Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary set up in India.

The Company has, also made an additional investment of SGD 0.40 Million during the year in Persistent Systems

Pte. Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore.
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9. Earnings per share (EPS) (In Rs. Million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  As at As at

 March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Basic EPS (After exceptional items)  

Numerator for Basic EPS  

Net Profit after Tax and after exceptional items a  586.04 837.12

 Numerator for Diluted EPS  

Net Profit after tax and after exceptional items b 586.04 837.12

 Denominator for Basic EPS  

Weighted average number of equity shares c 31,951,318 28,571,738

 Denominator for Diluted EPS  

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares d 35,861,000 35,859,838

Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(After exceptional items) a / c 18.34 29.30

 Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each b / d 16.34 23.34

(After exceptional items) (See Note below)  

 Basic EPS (Before exceptional Items)    

Numerator for Basic EPS    

Net Profit after Tax and before exceptional items e  600.77 872.30

 Numerator for Diluted EPS  

Net Profit after tax and before exceptional items f 600.77 872.30

Denominator for Basic EPS  

Weighted average number of equity shares as per (c) above g 31,951,318 28,571,738

 Denominator for Diluted EPS  

Weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares

(As per (d) above) h 35,861,000 35,859,838

Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(Before exceptional items) e / g 18.80 30.53

Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(Before exceptional items) (See Note below) f / h 16.75 24.33

Note

i. Pursuant to resolution passed at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on September 17, 2007 equity shares

were issued as bonus shares in the ratio of 5 Equity Shares for every 2 Equity Shares held by capitalisation of reserves.

ii. Pursuant to resolution passed at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on September 17, 2007, 209,045 Series A

Participatory Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 100 each were converted into Equity Shares

of Rs. 10 each. For computation of diluted EPS, weighted average number of equity shares includes 209,045 Series A

Participatory Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each up to the date of such conversion

into equity shares.
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Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing EPS

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009  2008

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding 31,951,318 28,571,738

Add Effect of dilutive issues of convertible preference shares - 3,378,418

Add Effect of dilutive issues of stock options 3,909,682 3,909,682

Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and

potential shares outstanding 35,861,000 35,859,838

10. Deferred tax

The Company enjoys a tax holiday under section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961, upto March 31, 2010. The timing

differences arising at March 31, 2009 and not reversing during the tax holiday period have been recognised in the books

of accounts as summarised below

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009  2008

Differences in depreciation and other differences in a block

of fixed assets as per the tax books and financial books 18.86 19.01

Gross deferred tax liability (A) 18.86 19.01

Provision for Leave liability and long term employee benefit 24.88 16.46

Provision for doubtful debts 10.37 -

Gross deferred tax assets (B) 35.25 16.46

Net deferred tax liability / (Asset) (A) - (B) (16.39) 2.55

11. Operating leases

The Company had taken office premises under non-cancellable operating lease agreement for a period of 36 months. The

non-cancellable lease period has expired during the current year. The lease rental charge (grouped in rent expenses) during

the year ended March 31, 2009 is Rs. 11.20 Million (Previous year Rs. 8.72 Million). There are no restrictions imposed by

the lease agreements. The Company has an option to renew the lease agreements at the end of the lease period. Maximum

obligation on long–term non-cancellable operating lease payable as per the rentals stated in respective agreement is as

follows

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009  2008

Obligation on non-cancellable operating leases

Not later than one year - 0.67

Later than one year and not later than five years - -

Later than five years - -

12. Share issue expenses

The Company deferred its Initial Public Offer (IPO), which was planned during the year, due to adverse market sentiment.

The Company has, therefore, written off share issue expenses amounting to Rs. 14.73 Million (Previous year Rs. 35.18

Million) as an exceptional item.
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13. Related party transactions

A. Names of related parties

Subsidiaries

i. Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited

ii. Persistent Systems, Inc.

iii. Persistent Systems Pte. Limited

iv. Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited

Key management personnel

i. Dr. Anand Deshpande, Chairman and Managing Director

ii. Mr. S. P. Deshpande, Director

Relatives of key management personnel

i. Mrs. Chitra Buzruk (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director and a Director)

ii. Mrs. Sulabha Suresh Deshpande (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director and a Director)

iii. Mrs. Sonali Anand Deshpande (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director)

iv. Dr. Mukund Suresh Deshpande (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director and a Director)

B. Related party transactions (In Rs. Million)

 Particulars  Name of the related party March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Income 1. Interest received Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 1.91 1.66

Persistent Systems, Inc. 3.87 -

2. Rent received Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited - 0.02

3. Reimbursement Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 1.62 5.55

    of expenses Persistent Systems, Inc. 2.16 3.79

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited - 0.38

4. Sale of software Persistent Systems, Inc. 278.86 108.95

    services Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 72.74 18.64

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 1.01 -

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited - 4.76

Expenditure 1. Commission paid Persistent Systems, Inc. 33.00 29.87

2. Software professional Persistent Systems, Inc. 213.20 146.59

    Charges

3. Reimbursement of Persistent Systems, Inc. 19.14 24.47

    project travel expenses

4. Reimbursement Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 2.46 -

    of expenses

Remuneration to Dr. Anand Deshpande 4.99 7.88

key management
 Mr. S. P. Deshpande 1.93 2.79

personnel

Remuneration to Mrs. Chitra Buzruk 1.29 1.41

relative of key
Dr. Mukund Deshpande 1.69 1.39

 
management

personnel
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Particulars  Name of the Related Party March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Dividend     Dr. Anand Deshpande 11.31 13.57

payment
Mr. S. P. Deshpande 3.80 4.56

Mrs. Chitra Buzruk 0.01 0.02

Mrs. Sonali Anand Deshpande 0.06 0.07

Mrs. Sulabha Suresh Deshpande 0.28 0.34

Sundry debtors   Persistent Systems, Inc. 15.19 -

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 29.01 4.24

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 0.90 -

Sundry creditors  Persistent Systems, Inc. 24.63 8.40

Investments (Outstanding amount) Persistent Systems, Inc. 165.92 165.92

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 42.28 42.28

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited 15.50 2.68

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 14.50 -

Additional     Persistent Systems Pte. Limited 12.82 2.68

investment
Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 14.50 -

Inter corporate (Outstanding amount) Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 25.53 25.53

deposits
Persistent Systems, Inc. 60.57 -

(Additions during Persistent Systems, Inc. 60.84 -

the year)

(Repayment during Persistent Systems, Inc. 0.27 -

the year)

Loans and (Outstanding amount)  Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited - 0.18

advances given
 Persistent Systems, Inc. 0.83 7.86

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited - 0.34

Loans and (Outstanding amount) Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 1.10 -

advances taken
Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 0.22 -

14. Employees stock options (ESOP)

The details of various ESOP plans adopted by the Board of Directors are as follows

ESOP Plan Date of adoption by the Board

Plan I December 11, 1999

Plan II April 23, 2004

Plan III April 23, 2004

Plan IV April 23, 2006

Plan V April 23, 2006

Plan VI October 31, 2006

Plan VII April 30, 2007

Plan VIII July 24, 2007

Method of settlement for all the plans is through equity.
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The vesting pattern for scheme I to V is as follows

Time period from date of grant (Months) Percentage of share vesting (%)

12 10

24 30

36 60

48 100

The vesting pattern for scheme VI is as follows

Time period from date of grant (Months) Percentage of share vesting (%)

18 30

For every quarter 5

The vesting pattern for scheme VII is as follows

Time period from date of grant (Months) Percentage of share vesting (%)

12 20

24 40

36 60

48 80

60 100

The vesting pattern for scheme VIII is as follows

Time period from date of grant (Months) Percentage of share vesting (%)

12 25

24 50

36 75

48 100

This space is intentionally left blank
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15. Supplementary statutory information

15.1 Remuneration paid to Executive and Non-Executive directors (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Salaries 5.97 5.17

Commission / Performance linked incentives to Whole-time Directors 0.23 4.73

Commission to Non-whole-time Directors 0.90 1.69

Perquisites 0.20 0.35

Sitting fees paid to Non-whole-time Directors 0.27 0.17

Contribution to Superannuation fund 0.29 0.23

Contribution to Provident fund 0.23 0.18

8.09 12.52

Note - As the future liability for gratuity and long term leave is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,

the amount pertaining to the Directors is not ascertainable and, therefore, not included above.

15.2 Auditors remuneration (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Audit fee 1.29 3.03

Tax audit fee 0.12 0.11

Other matters* 6.60 6.90

Out of pocket expenses 0.05 0.06

8.06 10.10

* Fees for the other matters include Rs. 4.38 Million (Previous year Rs. 6.83 Million) towards fees for services rendered in

connection with the Initial Public Offer.

15.3 Earnings and expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual Basis) (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

A Earnings in foreign currency

 Sale of software 4,945.42 3,648.50

 Reimbursement of expenses 80.90 105.74

Interest income 3.87 -

 5,030.19 3,754.24

B Expenditure in foreign currency

 Travelling and conveyance 108.32 112.52

 Training and seminars 0.00 0.12

 Staff welfare and benefits 0.00 0.13

 Software support charges 8.14 2.77

 Software professional charges 213.20 168.02

 Salary and allowances 17.08 10.52

 Rent 0.18 0.04

 Rates, fees and profession tax 1.17 0.45

 Advertisements, sponsorship fees 2.48 1.12

Legal and professional fees 4.08 6.27

 Communication charges 0.29 0.04

Balance carried forward to next page 354.94 302.00

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

 Balance brought forward from previous page 354.94 302.00

 Commission on sale 37.34 33.59

 Books, membership, subscriptions 0.28 0.49

 Repairs and maintenance 0.04 1.34

 Directors fees and reimbursement 1.89 1.18

 Miscellaneous expenses 0.55 0.80

 Computer consumables 0.48 -

 Conference fees 0.11 -

 Office expenses 1.50 -

 397.13 339.40

15.4 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis (In Rs. Million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Capital goods 340.97 109.16

15.5 Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Number of non-resident shareholders 5 5

Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due 8,966,824 8,966,824

Amount remitted (In Rs. Million) 5.38 10.76

Amount remitted (In USD Million) 0.11 0.27

Amount due but not remitted (In Rs. Million) 3.59 -

Amount due but not remitted (In USD Million) 0.07 -

16. Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 309(5) of the Companies Act, 1956. (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Profit before tax 612.33 894.30

Add

a. Managerial remuneration 7.82 12.35

b. Provision for bad and doubtful debts 87.47 15.24

c. Depreciation as per books of accounts 294.72 277.97

Less

a. Depreciation as per section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 294.72 277.97

b. Doubtful debts written back - 14.87

c. Profit of a capital nature 14.92 1.03

Net Profit as per Section 309(5) of the Companies Act, 1956 692.70 905.99

*The Company depreciates fixed assets based on estimated useful lives that are lower than those implicit in Schedule XIV

of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the rates of depreciation used by the Company are higher than the minimum

prescribed by the Schedule XIV.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)

15.3 Earning and expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual Basis) (Contd.)
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18. Requirement of clause 3, 4C and 4D of Part II to schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956

The Company is engaged in the development of software and related services. The production and sale of such software

cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not possible to give quantitative details of sales and certain information

as required under paragraphs 3, 4C and 4D of Part II to schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956. The information required

under clause 4D is given hereunder to the extent considered applicable.

19. Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

There were no amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium undertaking outstanding for more than 30 days, as at

March 31, 2009.

During the year, the Company had sent requests to vendors for confirming their status as Micro, Small and Medium

enterprises as per their registration with the appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006. Based on the confirmations received from such vendors, the management has confirmed that

there are no dues outstanding as on March 31, 2009 and there were no payments made during the period beyond 30

days, hence no provision for interest is required.

20. Previous year comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to current year’s classification.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2009

(In Rs. Million)

 Particulars For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2009 31, 2008

Cash flow from operating activities   

Net profit before tax and exceptional items  612.33  894.30

Adjustments for   

Interest income  (6.58)  (2.42)

Dividend income  (43.81)  (25.43)

Depreciation and amortisation  294.72  277.97

Employee compensation expenses  14.83  5.89

Unrealised exchange (gain)/ loss (net)  (3.42)  (2.36)

Exchange loss on derivative contracts  162.72  13.19

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency

cash and cash equivalents   0.03  0.10

Provision for doubtful debts

(net of doubtful debt provision written back)  87.47  0.37

Provision / (recovery) of deposits  (0.10)  2.78

Profit on sale of investments  (0.37)  (0.18)

Profit on sale of fixed assets  (14.92)  (1.03)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,102.90  1,163.18

Movements in working capital   

(Increase) in sundry debtors  (283.86)  (136.05)

(Increase) in other current assets  (39.89)  (23.59)

(Increase) in loans and advances  (23.32)  (46.28)

Increase in current liabilities and provisions  22.31  140.73

Operating profit after working capital changes  778.14  1,097.99

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (95.83)  (115.10)

Cash flow before exceptional items   682.31  982.89

Exceptional item  (14.73)  (35.18)

Net cash from operating activities after exceptional item (A)  667.58  947.71

Cash flows from investing activities   

Purchase of fixed assets  (482.93)  (487.31)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  15.70  2.86

Purchase of investments  (5,495.40)  (2,425.15)

Sale / maturity of investments  5,317.98  1,980.29

Interest income  6.51  2.40

Purchase of investment in subsidiaries  (27.32)  (2.69)

Dividends received  43.81  25.43

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)  (621.65)  (904.17)



107

Persistent Systems Limited

(In Rs. Million)

 Particulars For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2009 31, 2008

Cash flows from financing activities    

Proceeds from issuance of share capital   -  0.02

Increase in securities premium   -  0.31

Share issue expenses   -  (6.42)

interim dividends paid   (32.27)  (43.03)

Tax on interim dividend paid   (3.65)  (7.31)

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C)  (35.92)  (56.43)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)   10.01  (12.89)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   56.81  69.80

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and

cash equivalents   (0.03)  (0.10)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   66.79  56.81

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Cash on hand    0.14  0.12

With scheduled banks

On current account   58.72  56.40

With other banks

On current account  7.28 -

On saving account  0.65  0.29

66.79  56.81

(In Rs. Million)

As per our report of even date For and  on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Pune, June 23, 2009 and Head - Legal

I. Registration details

Registration no. U72300PN1990PLC056696

Status code no. 11

Balance sheet date March 31, 2009

II. Capital raised during the year ( Amount Rs. Lakh)

Public issue NIL

Rights issue NIL

Bonus issue NIL

Private placement NIL

III. Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Total liabilities  3,946.77

Total assets  3,946.77

Sources of funds

Paid up capital  358.61

Stock options outstanding  20.73

Reserves and surplus  3,567.43

Secured loans NIL

Unsecured loans NIL

Application of funds

Net fixed assets  2,170.57

Investments  1,067.01

Deferred tax asset  16.39

Net current assets  692.80

Miscellaneous expenditure NIL

Preliminary expenses NIL

IV.  Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Lakh except earning per share and dividend)

Turnover / receipts  5,270.68

Total expenditure  4,673.08

Profit / (Loss) before tax  612.33

Profit / (Loss) after tax  586.04

Earnings per share in Rs.( Diluted )  16.34

Dividend % 10%

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of the Company (as per monetary terms)

Product description Computer software and services

Item code no. N.A.
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Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi

Partner Partner

Membership No.: 30428 Membership No.: 89802

Place : Pune Place : Pune

Date : June 23, 2009 Date : June 23, 2009

To
The Board of Directors of Persistent Systems Limited

1. We S.R. Batliboi & Co. Chartered Accountants (“SRB”) and Joshi Apte & Co. (“JACO”) Chartered Accountants

(collectively referred to as “Joint Auditors”) have audited the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of Persistent

Systems Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”), as at March 31, 2009 and also the

consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date

annexed thereto.

2. These financial statements are the responsibility of Group’s management and have been prepared by the

management on the basis of separate financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally

accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not jointly audit the financial statements of following companies, whose total revenue, total assets and

cash flows to the extent they are included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are as given below

(In Rs. million)

Name of the Company Extent of share in Extent of share in Cash flows

consolidated revenues consolidated assets

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 85.09 53.72 5.96

Persistent Systems, Inc. 964.91 302.56 23.82

Persistent Systems Pte. Ltd. 35.25 26.90 7.16

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 2.56 21.78 7.22

These financial statements have been audited solely by JACO and have been accepted without verification by SRB

and hence our joint audit opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, is

based solely on the report of JACO.

4. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Group’s management in accordance

with the requirements of Accounting Standards (AS) 21, consolidated financial statements, notified by Companies

Accounting rules.

Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of JACO on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries

and on the other financial information of the components, and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements give a true and

fair view in con-formity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2009;

(b) in the case of the consolidated profit and loss account, of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that

date; and

(c) in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year then ended

on that date.
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2009

Sch. As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Sources of funds

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 1  358.61  358.61

Stock options outstanding (Refer note 15 to schedule 15)  20.73  5.89

Reserves and surplus 2  3,568.60  2,927.11

 3,947.94  3,291.61

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (Refer note 10 to schedule 15)  -  2.55

 3,947.94  3,294.16

Application of funds

Fixed assets 3

Gross block  3,372.42  2,928.37

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortisation  1,572.60  1,285.86

Net block  1,799.82  1,642.51

Capital work-in-progress including capital advances  377.44  330.75

 2,177.26  1,973.26

Investments 4  880.12  691.71

Deferred tax assets (net) (Refer note 10 to schedule 15)  20.47  -

Current assets, loans and advances

Sundry debtors 5  1,034.21  744.89

Cash and bank balances 6  165.39  113.16

Other current assets 7  130.27  89.39

Loans and advances 8  453.95  403.11

(A)  1,783.82  1,350.55

Less Current liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities 9  567.90  562.22

Provisions 10  345.83  159.14

(B)  913.73  721.36

Net current assets (A - B)  870.09  629.19

3,947.94  3,294.16

Notes to accounts 15

The schedules referred to above and consolidated notes to accounts form an integral part of the Consolidated

Balance Sheet.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S.P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009

(In Rs. Million)
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Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2009

Income

Sale of software services and products 11  5,938.31  4,248.50

Other Income 12  68.53  269.35

6,006.84  4,517.85

Expenditure

Personnel expenses 13  3,324.25  2,711.45

Operating and other expenses 14  1,700.52  637.24

5,024.77  3,348.69

Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation  982.07  1,169.16

Depreciation and amortisation 3  296.77  279.99

Profit before tax and exceptional items  685.30  889.17

Provision for tax

Current tax  64.94  98.70

Prior period tax  0.19  -

Less MAT credit entitlement  (43.00)  (89.44)

Net current tax  22.13  9.26

Deferred tax charge / (credit)  (23.02)  1.99

Fringe benefit tax  10.54  11.00

Total tax expense  9.65  22.25

Profit after tax and before exceptional items  675.65  866.92

Exceptional items (Refer note 18 to schedule 15)  (14.73)  (35.18)

Profit after tax and exceptional items  660.92  831.74

Balance brought forward from previous year  1,370.91  924.41

Profit available for appropriation  2,031.83  1,756.15

Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve  234.40  334.90

Interim dividend on equity shares  35.86  43.03

Tax on interim dividend on equity shares  6.09  7.31

Surplus carried to balance sheet  1,755.48  1,370.91

Earnings per share (Refer note 7 to schedule 15)

Basic [Nominal value of shares Rs. 10 (Previous year Rs.10 )]

Computed on the basis of earnings including exceptional

and prior period items  20.69  29.11

Computed on the basis of earnings excluding exceptional

and prior period items  21.15  30.34

Diluted [Nominal value of shares Rs. 10 (Previous year Rs.10 )]

Computed on the basis of earnings including exceptional

and prior period items  18.43  23.19

Computed on the basis of earnings excluding exceptional

and prior period items  18.84  24.17

Notes to accounts  1 5

The schedules referred to above and consolidated notes to accounts form an integral part of the Consolidated Profit and

Loss Account.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009

(In Rs. Million)

Sch. For the year For the year

ended ended

March 31, March 31,

 2009  2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet

Schedule 1

Share capital  

Authorised  

100,000,000 (Previous year 100,000,000)

equity shares of Rs. 10 each.   1,000.00  1,000.00

1,000.00  1,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up  

35,861,000 (Previous year 35,861,000 )

equity shares of Rs. 10 fully paid.  

(Out of above 25,615,000 (Previous year 25,615,000)

equity shares were allotted as fully paid-up bonus shares by

capitalisation of capital redemption reserves and

securities premium account)  358.61  358.61

   358.61  358.61

Schedule 2  

Reserves and surplus  

Capital redemption reserve  

Opening balance   -  9.79

Less Utilised for the issue of bonus shares  -  (9.79)

Closing balance (A)  -  -

Securities premium account  

Opening balance   577.49  829.96

Add Additions during the year   -  0.31

Less Share issue expenses  -  (6.42)

Less Utilised for the issue of bonus shares  -  (246.36)

Closing balance (B)  577.49  577.49

General reserve

Opening balance   984.63  649.73

Add Transferred from Profit and Loss Account   234.40  334.90

Closing balance (C)  1,219.03  984.63

Foreign currency translation reserve

Opening balance   (5.92) 0.38

Add Exchange difference during the year on net investment in

Non-integral operation   22.52  (6.30)

Closing balance (D)  16.60  (5.92)

Profit and Loss Account (E)  1,755.48 1,370.91

 (A)+(B)+(C)+(D)+(E)  3,568.60 2,927.11

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Schedule 4

Investments

Long term investments (At cost)

Other than trade (Unquoted)

Kriyari, Inc.

NIL (Previous year 60,000) Shares of USD 0.15 each -  0.36

Ciqual Limited

10,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Shares of GBP 0.01 each 9.03  -

(A)  9.03  0.36

Current Investments (At lower of cost and market value)

Other than trade (Unquoted)

Investment in mutual funds (unquoted)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments market value

Rs. 871.09 Million (Previous year Rs. 692.38 Million)  871.09  691.35

(B) 871.09  691.35

(Refer note 16 to schedule 15)  (A)+(B)  880.12  691.71

  

Schedule 5   

Sundry debtors

(Unsecured unless otherwise stated)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

Considered good  -  -

Considered doubtful  130.22  38.25

Other debts

Considered good  1,034.21  744.89

Considered doubtful  23.18  3.43

1,187.61  786.57

Less Provision for doubtful debts  153.40  41.68

1,034.21  744.89

Schedule 6  

Cash and bank balances

Cash on hand (A)  0.13  0.12

Balances with scheduled banks

On current accounts  76.32  60.88

On deposit accounts  2.21  4.11

(B)  78.53  64.99

Balances with other banks

On savings account  0.65  0.29

On current accounts  86.08  47.76

(C)  86.73  48.05

(A)+(B)+(C )  165.39  113.16

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Schedule 6 Cash and bank balances (Contd.)

Bank balances with others include:

Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi- NS, Japan

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 1.09 Million

(Previous year Rs. 1.93 Million)]  0.65  0.29

Bank of America

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 0.33 Million

(Previous year Rs. 2.78 Million)]   0.31  0.26

Sillicon Valley Bank

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 121.14 Million

(Previous year Rs. 57.80 Million)] 67.01  43.23

Citibank N.A. - Singapore

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 19.07 Million

(Previous year Rs. 9.44 Million)]  11.48  4.27

Citibank Canada

[Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 7.28 Million

(Previous year Rs. NIL)] 7.28  -

Schedule 7  

Other current assets

Accrued income  0.14  0.13

Unbilled revenue  128.92  89.26

Fixed assets held for sale (at net book value or estimated

net realisable value whichever is lower)  1.21  -

 130.27  89.39

Schedule 8  

Loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to PSPL ESOP Management Trust  153.83  158.33

Advance Income Tax  [Net of provision Rs. 192.92 Million

(Previous year Rs. 127.85 Million)] 37.83  4.83

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received  45.72  105.45

VAT and Service tax receivable [Net of provision Rs. 18.39 Million

(Previous year Rs. 6.62 Million)]   58.36  22.40

MAT credit entitlement  132.44  89.44

Deposits

Considered good  25.77  22.66

Considered doubtful  2.68  2.78

Less Provision for doubtful deposit  (2.68)  (2.78)

453.95  403.11
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet (Contd.)

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Schedule 9  

Current liabilities

Advance from customer  71.29  3.89

Sundry creditors

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note 19 to schedule 15)  -  -

Others  140.25  244.21

Unearned revenue  39.52  16.18

Accrued employee liabilities   276.14  201.31

Unpaid dividend   3.59  -

Unpaid tax on dividend   2.44  -

Other liabilities   34.67  96.63

567.90 562.22

Schedule 10  

Provisions

Provision for fringe benefit tax [net of advance tax Rs. 31.74 Million

(Previous year Rs. 21.52 Million)]   2.86  2.54

Provision for Gratuity [Refer note 5 to schedule 15]   2.11  30.43

Provision for Leave encashment   103.73  76.79

Provision for other long term benefits   61.22  36.19

Provision for derivative contracts (Refer note 3H(v) to schedule 15)   175.91  13.19

345.83 159.14

This space is intentionally left blank
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(In Rs. Million)

Schedules forming part of Profit & Loss Account

Schedule 11   

Sale of software services and products

Overseas  5,752.10  4,155.82

Domestic 186.21  92.68

 5,938.31  4,248.50

Schedule 12

Other income

Interest on bank deposits [Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 0.03 Million

(Previous year Rs. 0.04 Million)] 0.17  0.21

Interest on intercorporate deposit and others [Tax Deducted at

Source Rs. 1.25 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.38 Million)] 0.70  0.62

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 14.93  1.05

Dividend from non-trade investments 43.81  25.43

Foreign exchange gains (net) -  221.54

Profit on sale of investments (net) 0.37  0.18

Provision for doubtful deposit written back 0.10  -

Provision for doubtful debts written back 0.34  14.87

Miscellaneous income 8.11  5.45

68.53  269.35

 

Schedule 13   

Personnel expenses

Salary and allowances 3,014.09  2,398.67

Software professional charges 91.93  83.03

Contribution to provident fund 79.68  62.98

Gratuity (Refer note 5 to schedule 15) 2.00  27.70

Defined Contribution to other funds 22.32  58.35

Staff welfare and benefits 99.40  74.83

Employee compensation expenses 14.83  5.89

3,324.25  2,711.45

For the year For the year

ended ended

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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Schedule forming part of Profit and Loss Account (Contd.)

Schedule 14

Operating and other expenses

Traveling and conveyance  236.14  230.92

Electricity and fuel  63.61  62.74

Internet link charges  29.45  23.87

Communication charges  28.34  25.07

Recruitment expenses  26.07  39.73

Training and seminars  18.49  24.83

Software support charges  93.64  26.99

Provision for doubtful debts  108.58  23.39

Bad debts  3.72  -

Rent (Refer note 12 to schedule 15)  31.86  17.93

Insurance  11.45  11.89

Rates, fees and profession tax  12.69  18.28

Legal and professional fees  30.59  19.65

Repairs and maintenance

Equipments 16.51  14.01

Building  6.11  6.73

Others  9.20  7.53

Commission on sales to other than sole selling agents  4.80  5.64

Advertisements, sponsorship fees  15.62  10.24

Computer consumables  5.44  7.28

Auditors’ remuneration (Refer note 17 to schedule 15)  4.31  3.69

Donations  15.43  1.61

Books, memberships, subscriptions  1.47  2.29

Preliminary expenses written off  0.81  -

Foreign exchange loss  711.24  -

Loss on sale of investment 0.41  -

Exchange loss on derivative contracts (Refer note 3H(v) to schedule 15)  162.72  13.19

Director’s sitting fees  0.27  0.25

Director’s commission  0.90  1.69

Provision for doubtful deposit  -  2.78

Miscellaneous expenses  50.65  35.02

 1,700.52  637.24

(In Rs. Million)

For the year For the year

ended ended

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008
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Notes to Accounts

Schedule 15

1. Nature of operations

Persistent Systems Limited (‘the Company’) is predominantly engaged in Outsourced Product Development services for

Independent Software Vendors (ISVs) and Enterprises. The Company offers complete product life cycle services from end

to end.

Persistent Systems, Inc. (PSI), a foreign subsidiary of the Company, is engaged in software development, professional and

marketing services.

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited (PeBS) is engaged in software development, consultancy and system integration

services.

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited, (PS Pte.), a foreign subsidiary of the Company, is engaged in software development,

professional and marketing services.

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited (PSSL), a domestic subsidary of the Company, has been setup to inter alia, mainly

provide software development services from Special Economic Zones.

2. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2009 of the Company, PSI, PeBS, PS Pte and PSSL (the

‘Group’) are prepared under historical cost convention in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable

in India, and the Notified Accounting Standard 21 (AS-21) on consolidation of financial statements, to the extent possible

in the same format as that adopted by Parent Company (the Company) for its separate financial statements.

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on line by line basis by adding

together the book values of like items of assets and liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra group

balances and intra group transactions. Any excess of the cost to the parent company of its investment in a subsidiary and

the parent company’s portion of equity of subsidiary at the date, at which investment in the subsidiary is made, is described

as goodwill and recognised separately as an asset in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other

events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for deviations, if any, are made in the consolidated

financial statements and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

The subsidiary companies considered in consolidated financial statements are

Name of the subsidiary Ownership percentage as at Country of

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008 Incorporation

Persistent eBusiness Solutions Limited 100% 100% India

Persistent Systems and Solutions Limited 100% NA India

Persistent Systems, Inc. 100% 100% USA

Persistent Systems Pte. Limited 100% 100% Singapore

3. Statement of significant accounting policies

A. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2009 have been prepared in accordance with Notified

accounting standard issued by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual

basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group are consistent with those used in the previous

year.
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B. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent

liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting

period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual

results could differ from these estimates.

C. Fixed assets and Intangibles

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, cost comprises the purchase

price and any attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended

use, are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of fixed assets that are not ready or put to use and advances paid to construct or

acquire fixed assets.

Cost relating to software licenses, of enduring nature are capitalised on acquisition and amortised over their estimated

useful lives.

D. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the

management, or at the rates prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, whichever is higher.

Software licenses of enduring nature are amortised over a period of three years or over their estimated useful lives whichever

is lower.

Depreciation on assets purchased / sold during the year is charged on a pro-rata basis. Individual assets whose cost does

not exceed Rs. 5,000 are depreciated at 100%.

A comparative statement of rates of depreciation followed by the Group and applicable rates as per the schedule XIV of

the Companies Act is as below

Assets Rates (SLM) Rates as per Schedule XIV (SLM)

Computers 33.33% 16.21%

Plant and machinery 20.00% 4.75%

Furniture and fixtures 20.00% 6.33%

Vehicles 20.00% 9.50%

Buildings 4.00% 1.63%

E. Impairment

i. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based

on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average

cost of capital.

ii. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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F. Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for a period not more than a year are classified as current

investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term

investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline, other than

temporary decline, in the value of the investments.

G. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can

be reliably measured.

i. Income from software services

Revenue from time and material engagements is recognised on time basis in accordance with the terms of the

contracts.

In case of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the milestones achieved as specified in the contracts,

on the proportionate completion basis.

Revenue from licensing of products is recognised on delivery of products.

Revenue from royalty is recognised on sale of products in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Revenue from maintenance contracts are recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the contract as and when

services are rendered.

Unbilled revenue represents revenue recognised in relation to work done on time and material projects and fixed

price projects until the balance sheet date for which billing has not taken place.

Unearned revenue represents the billing in respect of contracts for which the revenue is not recognised as per the

terms of contract.

ii. Interest

Revenue from interest is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the

rate applicable.

iii. Dividends

Revenue from dividend is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet

date.

H. Foreign currency translations

i. Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the

exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

ii. Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms

of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency

are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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iii. Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Group’s monetary items at rates

different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements,

are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Exchange differences from the accounting period commencing on or after April 1, 2007 in respect of fixed assets

acquired, including foreign currency liabilities relating thereto, are recognised as income or expenses in the period in

which they arise.

iv. Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes covered by AS 11

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortised as expense or income

over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward

exchange contract is recognised as income or as expense for the year.

v. Options and forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes, classified as derivative

instruments

Pursuant to the announcement made by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) regarding “Accounting

for Derivatives”, options and forward exchange contracts, not covered by (iv) above are classified as derivatives and

are marked to market on a portfolio basis at the balance sheet date. The resultant net losses after considering the

offsetting effect on the underlying hedge items are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account on the principle of

prudence. The resultant net gains, if any, on such derivatives are not recognised in financial statements. Any profit or

loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is recognised as income or expense for the

year.

vi. Translation of non-integral foreign operation

In translating the financial statements of a non-integral foreign operation for incorporation in consolidated financial

statement, the assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the non-integral foreign operation are

translated at the closing rate; income and expense items of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at

exchange rates at an average rate for the current year; and all resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a

foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the net investment.

I. Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Gratuity

Gratuity liability represents defined benefit obligation and is provided for based on actuarial valuations, by using the

Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, made at the end of each financial period for employees covered under Group

Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (L.I.C.).

ii. Superannuation

The Group has provided for a superannuation scheme as a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees.

The contribution to the superannuation fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India equal to the specified

percentage of the basic salary of the eligible employees as per the scheme. The contribution to this scheme is

charged to the Profit and Loss Account on an accrual basis. There are no other contributions payable other than

contribution payable to the respective fund.

iii. Provident fund

The Group has provided for a provident fund scheme defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The

Group and the eligible employees make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by the Regional

Provident Fund Commissioner equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the eligible employees as per

the scheme. The employer’s contribution is charged to the Profit and Loss Account on an accrual basis. There are no

other contributions payable other than contribution payable to the respective fund.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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iv. Leave encashment

The short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are

provided for based on actuarial valuation by using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method.

v. Long service awards

Long service awards are other long term benefits to all eligible employees, as per Group’s policy are provided based

on actuarial valuation. Actuarial valuations are made as per the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method.

vi. Actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial gains/ losses are immediately taken to Profit and Loss Account and are not deferred.

J. Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax. Current income tax and fringe benefit tax is measured at

the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. Deferred income taxes

reflect the impact of current year’s timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and

reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet

date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Group has unabsorbed

depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by

convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities relating to the timing differences arising and reversing during the tax holiday period under

Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961, are not recognised.

At each balance sheet date the Group re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred

tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future

taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities across various countries of operations are not set off against each other as

the Group does not have a legal right to do so.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Group writes-down the carrying

amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,

that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such

write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that

sufficient future taxable income will be available.

The Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence

that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the period in which the MAT credit becomes

eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and

shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying

amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay

normal Income Tax during the specified period.

K. Segment reporting policies

The Group’s operations predominantly relate to providing Outsourced Software Product Development services covering

full life cycle of product to its customers.

Accordingly product development services represented along with broad industry classes comprise primary basis of segmental

information. Secondary segmental reporting is done on the basis of geographical location of customers who are invoiced

or in relation to whom revenue is otherwise recognised.

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of financial statements are applied to record income and

expenses in individual segments.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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Income and direct expenses allocable to segments are categorised based on items that are individually identifiable to that

segment such as salaries and project related travel expenses. The remainder is considered as un-allocable expense and is

charged against the total income.

There were no inter-segmental transactions during the year.

Segregation of assets, liabilities, depreciation and other non-cash expenses into various reportable segments has not been

done as the assets are used interchangeably between segments and the Group is of the view that it is not practical to

reasonably allocate liabilities and other non-cash expenses to individual segments and an ad-hoc allocation will not be

meaningful.

L. Earnings per share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining EPS comprise the amount attributable to Equity Shareholders. The number of

shares used in computing the basic earning per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year as reduced by the shares held by PSPL ESOP Management Trust at the balance sheet date, which are obtained by PSPL

ESOP Management Trust from finance provided by the Group.

The weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the previous year was adjusted for events of bonus issue

The number of shares used in computing the diluted earning per share comprises the weighted average number of share

considered for deriving basic earning per share, and also the weighted average number of shares, if any issued on the

conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares. The number of weighted average shares outstanding during the year and

potentially dilutive Equity Shares are adjusted for the issued bonus shares and sub-division of shares.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the Equity

Shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential Equity Shares.

M. Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions

are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at

the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an

original maturity period of three months or less.

O. Employee stock compensation cost

Measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with the Guidance Note

on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Group measures compensation cost relating to employee stock options using the intrinsic value method. Compensation

expense is amortised over the vesting period of the option on a straight line basis if the fair market value of the underlying

stock exceeds the exercised price at the measurement date, which typically is the grant date.

P. Lease

Where the Group is a lessee, assets acquired as leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are

retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

4. Securities for loans

The export packing credit is secured by hypothecation of present and future receivables of the Group on pari passu basis

with State Bank of India, Bank of India and Citibank N.A. There is no balance payable as at March 31, 2008 and

March 31,2009.

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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5. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a

gratuity on departure at 15 days basic salary (last drawn basic salary) subject to a maximum of 30 days basic salary (last

drawn basic salary) as per the rules of the Company for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an

insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and the

funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Profit and Loss Account

Net employee (benefit) / expense (recognised in Employee cost) (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Current service cost 28.36 28.07 17.61

Interest cost on benefit obligation 6.51 4.05 2.58

Expected return on plan assets (5.63) (4.37) (2.43)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (27.24) 7.17 3.29

Interest income 0.00 (4.40) -

Net (benefit) / expense 2.00 30.52 21.05

Actual Return on Net Plan Assets - - -

Changes in the fair value of plan assets (recognised in the Balance Sheet) are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Opening fair value of plan assets 53.88 29.09 31.56

Expected return / adjustment 5.63 4.37 2.43

Contribution by employer 30.19 20.35 0.04

Benefits paid (5.52) (2.79) (2.51)

Actuarial gains / (losses) 1.85 2.86 (2.43)

Closing fair value of plan assets 86.03 53.88 29.09

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation (recognised in Balance Sheet) are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Opening defined benefit obligation 84.13 52.00 33.46

Interest cost 6.51 4.05 2.58

Current service cost 28.36 28.07 17.61

Benefits paid (5.52) (2.79) (2.51)

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (25.41) 2.80 0.86

Closing defined benefit obligation 88.07 84.13 52.00

Summary statement of provision for gratuity is as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Fair value of plan assets 86.03 53.88 29.09

Defined benefit obligations (88.07) (84.13) (52.00)

Unrecognised past service cost - - -

Plan asset / (liability) (2.04) (30.25) (22.91)
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The Company expects to contribute Rs. 2.04 Million to gratuity fund in the financial year 2009-10.

The Company maintains gratuity fund, which is being administered by L. I. C.

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Investments with insurer including accrued interest 86.03 53.88 29.09

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable

to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Discount rate 7.79% 8.00% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 8.50% 9.00% 8.00%

Amounts for the current and previous years are as follows (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Plan assets 86.03 53.88 29.09

Defined benefit obligation (88.07) (84.13) (52.00)

Surplus / (deficit) (2.04) (30.25) (22.91)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (25.41) 2.80 0.86

Experience adjustments on plan assets 1.85 2.86 (2.43)

6. Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure Forward (In USD Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Sales USD 87.32 USD 136.85

Purchase - -

Particulars of Unhedged foreign Currency Exposure as at the balance sheet date

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Balance with Bank of Tokyo Rs. 0.65 Million (JPY 1.26 Million Rs. 0.29 Million (JPY 0.73 Million

Mitsubishi, NS (Japan) @ closing rate of JPY 1 = Re. 0.5147) @ closing rate of JPY 1 = Re. 0.399)

Balance with Rs. 0.51 Million (USD 0.01 Million Rs. 0.40 Million (USD 0.01 Million

Bank of India (USA) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 50.70) @ closing rate of USD 1 = Rs. 40.11)

Balance with Rs. 0.68 Million (GBP 0.01 Million Rs. 0.21 Million (GBP 0.002 Million

Bank of India (UK) @ closing rate of GBP 1 = Rs. 72.51) @ closing rate of GBP 1 = Rs. 79.58)

Balance with Rs. 7.28 Million (CAD 0.18 Million

Citibank (Canada) @ closing rate of CAD 1 = Rs. 40.45) -
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7. Earnings per share (EPS) (In Rs. Million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  As at As at

 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Basic EPS (After exceptional items)  

Numerator for Basic EPS  

Net Profit after Tax and after exceptional items a 660.92 831.74

Numerator for Diluted EPS  

Net Profit after tax and after exceptional items b 660.92 831.74

Denominator for Basic EPS  

Weighted average number of equity shares c 31,951,318 28,571,738

Denominator for Diluted EPS  

Weighted average number of equity shares and

potential equity shares d 35,861,000 35,859,838

Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(After exceptional items) a / c 20.69 29.11

Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(After exceptional items) (See Note below) b / d 18.43 23.19

Basic EPS (Before exceptional Items)  

Numerator for Basic EPS  

Net Profit after Tax and before exceptional items e  675.65 866.92

Numerator for Diluted EPS  

Net Profit after tax and before exceptional items f 675.65 866.92

Denominator for Basic EPS  

Weighted average number of equity shares as per (c) above g 31,951,318 28,571,738

Denominator for Diluted EPS  

Weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares

As per (d) above  h 35,861,000 35,859,838

Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(Before exceptional items)  e / g 21.15 30.34

Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

(Before exceptional items) (See Note below)  f / h 18.84 24.17

Notes

i. Pursuant to resolution passed at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on September 17, 2007 equity shares

were issued as bonus shares in the ratio of 5 Equity Shares for every 2 Equity Shares held by capitalisation of reserves.

ii. Pursuant to resolution passed at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on September 17, 2007, 209,045 Series A

Participatory Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 100 each were converted into Equity Shares

of Rs. 10 each. For computation of diluted EPS, weighted average number of equity shares includes 209,045 Series A

Participatory Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each up to the date of such conversion

into equity shares.
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Reconcilation of basic and diluted shares used in computing EPS

Particulars  March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding 31,951,318 28,571,738

Add Effect of dilutive issues of convertible preference shares - 3,378,418

Add Effect of dilutive issues of stock options 3,909,682 3,909,682

Number of shares considered as weighted average shares

and potential shares outstanding  35,861,000 35,859,838

8. Investment in subsidiary

During the year ended March 31, 2009 the Company has invested Rs. 14.50 Million in Persistent Systems and Solutions

Limited, a 100% subsidiary set up in India.

The Company has, also made an additional investment of SGD 0.40 Million during the year in Persistent Systems Pte.

Limited a 100% subsidiary in Singapore.

9. Capital commitment (In Rs. Million)

Particulars  March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account and not provided for 366.97 349.37

10. Deferred tax

The Company enjoys a tax holiday under section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961, up to March 31, 2010. The timing

differences arising at March 31, 2009 and not reversing during the tax holiday period have been recognised in the books

of accounts as summarised below

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars  March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Differences in depreciation and other differences in a block of fixed

assets as per the tax books and financial books 19.07 19.01

Gross deferred tax liability (A) 19.07 19.01

Provision for Leave liability and long term employee benefit 24.88 16.46

Provision for doubtful debts 14.66 -

Gross deferred tax assets (B) 39.54 16.46

Net deferred tax liability / (asset) (A) - (B) (20.47) 2.55

In case of Persistent Systems, Inc., the Group has not recognised deferred tax asset, as there is no virtual certainty supported

by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be

realised. This is consistent with the Notified Accounting Standard 22 (AS-22), “Accounting for Taxes on Income”.

In case of Persistent Systems Pte. Limited no deferred tax asset / liability is recognised as there are no material timing

differences arising at balance sheet date.

11. Contingent Liabilities not provided for (In Rs. Million)

Particulars  March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Legal Claims filed by the ex employee for salary and other benefits 0.29 0.29

ESI 4.92 4.92

5.21 5.21
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The Company has received a demand notice dated December 31, 2008, u/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, for the assessment

year 2005-06 for Rs. 2.57 Million. The Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals – II), as per the order dated November

11, 2008, has passed an order granting relief of Rs. 2.61 Million for the assessment year 2003-04.

12. Operating leases

The Group has taken office premises under non-cancellable operating lease agreement for a period of 60 months,

36 months and 12 months. The lease rental charge (grouped in rent expenses) during the year ended March 31, 2008 is

Rs. 31.30 Million (previous year Rs. 17.49 Million) and maximum obligation on long–term non-cancellable operating lease

payable as per the rentals stated in respective agreement are as follows

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars  March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Obligation on non-cancellable operating leases

Not later than one year 1.14 1.23

Later than one year and not later than five years - -

Later than five years - -

13. Segment Information (In Rs. Million)

Particulars Year ended on  ISV  Telecom Practices,  Total

March 31, Enterprise

VLSI & Others

Revenue 2009 2,938.71 1,241.21 1,758.39 5,938.31

2008 2,175.28 1,086.52 986.70 4,248.50

Identifiable expense 2009 (1,258.07) (636.54) (825.14) (2,719.75)

2008 (1,071.69) (565.78) (484.89) (2,122.36)

Segmental operating income 2009 1,680.64 604.67 933.25 3,218.56

2008 1,103.59 520.74 501.81 2,126.14

Unallocable expenses 2009 (2,601.79)

2008 (1,506.32)

Operating income 2009 616.77

2008 619.82

Other income (Net of expenses) 2009 68.53

2008 269.35

Profit before taxes 2009 685.30

2008 889.17

Income tax 2009 (9.65)

2008 (22.25)

Profit after tax 2009 675.65

2008 866.92

Extraordinary / prior period/ 2009 (14.73)

Exceptional items 2008 (35.18)

Profit after extraordinary items 2009 660.92

2008 831.74
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The Group’s operations predominantly relate to providing Outsourced Software Product Development services covering

full life cycle of product to its customers. Accordingly, product development services representative alongwith broad

industry classes comprise primary basis of segmental information and Outsourced Software Product Development services

for Independent Software Vendors (ISVs), Telecom and very large scale integration customers (VLSI), have been identified

as primary business segments. Secondary segmental reporting is done on the basis of geographical location of customers

who are invoiced or in relation to whom revenue is otherwise recognised.

Geographical segments

The following table shows the distribution of the Groups consolidated sales by geographical market regardless of where

the goods were produced

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars Year ended on Year ended on

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Asia Pacific 240.39 154.14

Europe 512.48 369.53

North America 5,185.44 3,724.83

5,938.31 4,248.50

Segregation of assets, liabilities, depreciation and other non cash expenses into various reportable segments and the

group is of the view that it is not practical to reasonably allocate liability and other non cash expenses to individual

segments and an ad hoc allocation will not be meanigful.

14. Related party transactions

A. Names of related parties

Key Management Personnel

i. Dr. Anand Deshpande, Chairman and Managing Director

ii. Mr. S. P. Deshpande, Director

iii. Mr. T. M. Vijayaraman*, Chief Technology Officer and Director, Persistent Systems, Inc., USA

iv. Mr. Hari Haran**, President, Persistent Systems, Inc., USA

v. Mr. Raj Sirohi***, President, Persistent Systems, Inc., USA

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

i. Mrs. Chitra Buzruk (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director and a Director)

ii. Mrs. Sulabha Suresh Deshpande (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director and a Director)

iii. Mrs. Sonali Anand Deshpande (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director)

iv. Dr. Mukund Deshpande (Relative of the Chairman and Managing Director and a Director)
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B. Related party transactions (In Rs. Million)

Particulars Name of the March 31, March 31,

 Related Party 2009  2008

Remuneration to Dr. Anand Deshpande 4.99 7.88

key management

Mr S. P. Deshpande 1.93 2.79

 

personnel

Mr. T. M. Vijayaraman* 9.13 -

 Mr. Hari Haran** 7.59 -

 Mr. Raj Sirohi*** 5.83 14.47

 Remuneration to Mrs. Chitra Buzruk 1.29 1.41

 

relatives of key

Dr. Mukund Deshpande 1.69 1.39
management

personnel

Dividend payment Dr. Anand Deshpande 11.31 13.57

 Mr S. P. Deshpande 3.80 4.56

 Mrs. Chitra Buzruk 0.01 0.02

 Mrs. Sonali Anand Deshpande 0.06 0.07

 Mrs. Sulabha Suresh Deshpande 0.28 0.34

 Mr. T. M. Vijayaraman* 0.05 -

* Although Mr. T.M. Vijayaraman was appointed as Director on September 6, 2008, the remuneration paid is disclosed

for entire period since his date of joining i.e. May 5, 2008.

** Mr. Hari Haran joined as the President of Persistent Systems, Inc., w.e.f. October 28, 2008.

*** Mr. Raj Sirohi resigned as the president of Persistent Systems, Inc., w.e.f. September 5, 2008

15. Employees stock options (ESOP)

The details of various ESOP plans adopted by the Board of Directors are as follows:

ESOP Plan Date of adoption by the Board

Plan I December 11, 1999

Plan II April 23, 2004

Plan III April 23, 2004

Plan IV April 23, 2006

Plan V April 23, 2006

Plan VI October 31, 2006

Plan VII April 30, 2007

Plan VIII July 24, 2007

Method of settlement for all the plans is through equity.
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The vesting pattern for scheme I to V is as follows

Time Period from Date of Grant (Months) Percentage of Share Vesting (%)

12 10

24 30

36 60

48 100

The vesting pattern for scheme VI is as follows

Time Period from Date of Grant (Months) Percentage of Share Vesting (%)

18 30

For every quarter 5

The vesting pattern for scheme VII is as follows

Time Period from Date of Grant (Months) Percentage of Share Vesting (%)

12 20

24 40

36 60

48 80

60 100

The vesting pattern for scheme VIII is as follows

Time Period from Date of Grant (Months) Percentage of Share Vesting (%)

12 25

24 50

36 75

48 100
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The status of various ESOP schemes is shown in the following table

<------------------------------------------------ Plans ----------------------------------------------->

Particulars I II III IV V VI VII VIII Total

Granted a 2,280,250 376,600 1,266,650 2,397,150 945,262 608,125 778,487 21,000 8,673,524

Vested b 1,606,255 222,169 327,652 408,604 208,957 255,713 161,595 5,250 3,196,195

Encashed and

Exercised c 1,553,277 56,385 79,301 - - - - - 1,688,963

Vested and Not

exercised (b-c) d 52,978 165,784 248,351 408,604 208,957 255,713 161,595 5,250 1,507,232

Lapsed e 667,047 107,607 322,462 711,123 246,134 215,250 216,300 - 2,485,923

Not Vested

(a – c - d - e) f 6,948 46,824 616,536 1,277,423 490,171 137,162 400,592 15,750 2,991,406

Total

Outstanding

(d + f ) g 59,926 212,608 864,887 1,686,027 699,128 392,875 562,187 21,000 4,498,638

Weighted average

remaining

Contractual Life

(In years) Note 1 10.04 Note 1 11.56 Note 1 12.55 12.98 5.46

Weighted average

fair value of

options granted (Rs.) 9.37 47.52 58.47 62.11 51.06 50.11 113.98 143.57

Note 1 No contractual life is defined in the schemes.

All the numbers provided in this above table are after ignoring fractions

Compensation expense arising from employee share based payment plans amounted to Rs. 14.83 million (Previous year

Rs. 5.89). No fresh grants have been granted during the year.

Had compensation cost been determined in a manner consistent with fair value approach there will be no significant

impact on the company’s net income and earning per share.

Advance to the Trust, as on the balance sheet date in respect of shares allotted by the Company to the Trust, amounted

to Rs. 50.60 million (Previous year Rs. 55.10 million). As illustrated in the example in the appendix to the Guidance Note,

had the advance been presented as a reduction from equity, the Equity Share Capital would have been reduced by

Rs. 6.06 million (Previous year Rs. 6.60 million) and Share Premium would have been reduced by Rs. 44.54 million

(Previous year Rs.48.50 million).
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17. Auditors’ Remuneration (In Rs. Million)

Particulars March 31, March 31,

2009 2009

Audit fee 1.89 3.44

Tax Audit fee 0.15 0.12

Other matters* 6.60 6.90

Out of pocket expenses 0.05 0.06

8.69 10.52

* Fees for the other matters include to Rs. 4.38 Million (Previous year Rs. 6.83 Million) towards fees for services

rendered in connection with the Initial Public Offer.

18. Share issue expenses

The Company deferred its Initial Public Offer (IPO), which was planned during the year, due to adverse market sentiment.

The company has, therefore, written off share issue expenses amounting to Rs. 14.73 Million (Previous year

Rs. 35.18 Million) as an exceptional item.

19. Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

There were no amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium undertaking outstanding for more than 30 days, as at

March 31, 2009.

During the year, the Company had sent requests to vendors for confirming their status as Micro, Small and Medium

enterprises as per their registration with the appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006. Based on the confirmations received from such vendors, the management has confirmed that

there are no dues outstanding as on March 31, 2009 and there were no payments made during the period beyond 30

days, hence no provision for interest is required.

20. Previous year comparatives

Previous years figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune,  June 23, 2009

Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2009

(In Rs. Million)

 Particulars For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2009 31, 2008

Cash flow from operating activities    

Net profit before taxation    685.30  889.17

Adjustments for    

Interest income   (0.87)  (0.84)

Dividend income   (43.81)  (25.43)

Depreciation and amortisation   296.77  279.99

Foreign exchange loss (net)    (3.61)  (2.33)

Exchange loss on derivative contracts   162.72  13.19

Exchange difference on translation of foreign

currency cash and cash equivalents   0.03  0.10

Provision for doubtful debts

(net of doubtful debt provision written back)   108.24  8.52

Loss on valuation of investment   0.41  -

Bad debts   3.72  -

Employee compensation expenses   14.83  5.89

Provision / (recovery) of deposits   (0.10)  2.78

(Profit) on sale of investments (net)   (0.37)  (0.18)

(Profit) on sale of fixed assets (net)   (14.93)  (1.05)

Operating profit before working capital changes   1,208.33  1,169.81

Movements in working capital    

(Increase) in sundry debtors   (398.19)  (227.91)

(Increase) in other current assets   (39.66)  (33.47)

(Increase) / decrease in loans and advances   25.84  (46.44)

Increase in current liabilities and provisions   10.52  255.40

Operating profit after working capital changes   806.84  1,117.39

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)   (108.35)  (115.36)

Cash flow before exceptional items  698.49  1,002.03

Exceptional item   (14.73)  (35.18)

Net cash from operating activities after exceptional item  (A)  683.76  966.85

Cash flows from investing activities    

Purchase of fixed assets   (490.04)  (488.06)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets   15.72  2.88

Purchase of investments   (5,504.07)  (2,431.45)

Sale / maturity of investments   5,340.09  1,980.29

Interest income   0.81  0.81

Dividends received   43.81  25.43

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (B)  (593.68)  (910.10)
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(In Rs. Million)

 Particulars For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2009 31, 2008

 Cash flows from financing activities    

Proceeds from issuance of share capital   -  0.02

Increase in securities premium   -  0.31

Share issue expenses   -  (6.42)

Dividends paid   (32.27)  (43.03)

Tax on dividend paid   (3.65)  (7.31)

Net cash (used in) financing activities  (C)  (35.92)  (56.43)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)   54.16  0.32

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   109.05  108.83

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency

cash and cash equivalents   (0.03)  (0.10)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   163.18  109.05

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, March 31,

2009 2008

Cash and cheques on hand   0.13  0.12

With scheduled banks

On current account   76.32  60.88

With other banks

On current account   86.08  47.76

On saving account   0.65  0.29

    163.18  109.05

(In Rs. Million)

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JOSHI APTE & Co. For S. R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

C. K. Joshi per Arvind Sethi Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 30428 Membership No. 89802 and Head - Legal

Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009 Pune, June 23, 2009
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Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Company Persistent Persistent Persistent Persistent

No. e-Business Systems, Systems Systems and

Solutions Inc. Pte. Solutions

Limited Limited Limited

1. Financial year / Period of the

subsidiary ended on March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2009 2009 2009 2009

2. Holding company’s interest 920,300 Equity 37,000,000 500,000 Ordinary 1,450,000 Equity

i. The number of  shares of Rs. 10 Common Stock Shares of SGD 1 Shares of Rs. 10

equity shares held each fully paid of USD 0.10 each each fully paid  each fully paid

are held by fully paid are are held by are held by

Persistent held by Persistent  Persistent Persistent

Systems Limited Systems Limited Systems Limited Systems Limited

ii. Extent of interest in the

capital of subsidiary 100% 100% 100% 100%

3. The net aggregate amount of

profits/ (Loss) of the subsidiary

for the above financial year so

far as the members of the

holding company are concerned

and are

i. dealt within the accounts of

the holding company NIL NIL  NIL  NIL

ii. not dealt within the accounts

of the holding company.

(Amount in Rs. Million) 4.53 61.65 0.39 8.33

4. The net aggregate amount of

profits / (losses) of the subsidiary

for the previous financial years

since it became subsidiary so

far as the members of the

holding company are

concerned and are     

      

 i. dealt within the accounts of

holding company.

(Amount in Rs. Million) (42.28) NIL NIL NIL

 ii. not dealt within the accounts

 of holding company

(Amount in Rs. Million) 1.71 (109.56) 2.65 NIL

5. Information where the financial

year of a subsidiary company

does not coincide with the

financial year of the holding

company.

Statement pursuant to Section 212(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956,

relating to subsidiaries



cmyk

146

Nineteenth Annual Report 2008-2009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Pune, June 23, 2009 and Head - Legal

Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Company Persistent Persistent Persistent Persistent

No. e-Business Systems, Systems Systems and

Solutions Inc. Pte. Solutions

Limited Limited Limited

i. Change in the holding company’s

interest in the subsidiary between

the end of the financial year or of

the last financial year of the

subsidiary and the end of the

holding company’s financial year N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

    

ii. Details of material changes

which have occurred between the

end of the financial year of the

subsidiary and the end of the

holding company’s financial year

in respect of the subsidiary’s

fixed assets, its investments,

the moneys lent by it and the

moneys borrowed by it for any

purpose other than that of

meeting current liabilities. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anand Deshpande S. P. Deshpande

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

Rajesh Ghonasgi Vivek Sadhale

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Pune, June 23, 2009 and Head - Legal

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, relating

to Subsidiaries

Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Company Persistent Persistent Persistent Persistent

No. e-Business Systems, Systems Systems and

Solutions Inc. Pte. Solutions

Limited Limited Limited

Financial year / Period of the March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

subsidiary ended on 2009 2009 2009 2009

1 Share Capital 9.20 165.92 15.50 14.50

2 Reserves (13.64) (33.10) 4.84 8.33

3 Liabilities 57.90 194.48 1.43 4.31

4 Total liabilities 53.46 327.30 21.77 27.14

5 Total assets 53.46 327.30 21.77 27.14

6 Investments NIL NIL 9.03 NIL

7 Turnover 84.73 1,225.97 2.12 35.25

8 Profit / (loss) before tax  1.40 62.81 0.42 8.36

9 Provision for tax  (3.13) 1.16 0.03 0.03

10 Profit / (loss) after tax 4.53 61.65 0.39 8.33

11 Proposed dividend - Equity Shares  - - - -

12 Proposed dividend - Equity (%) - - - -

(In Rs. Million)
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